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          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Good morning. The

          3  Civil Service and Labor Committee is now in hearing.

          4  First I would like to begin by thanking you for your

          5  indulgence, I know we are running a little late.

          6  This is a pressing issue and we wanted to make sure

          7  that everyone who needs to be here is in fact here.

          8                 Today the Committee on Civil Service

          9  and Labor will receive testimony in relation to

         10  resolution 258, sponsored by Council Member Spigner,

         11  Pinkett, Malave-Dilan, Rodriguez, Warden, Watkins

         12  and Ognibene.

         13                 This resolution calls upon the New

         14  York State Legislature to amend the public officers

         15  law to require the uniformed members of New York

         16  City Police Department to reside within the City of

         17  New York.

         18                 We also are going to hear testimony

         19  regarding resolution 652, again, sponsored by the

         20  New York City Council Speaker Vallone and Council

         21  Member Spigner.

         22                 This resolution calls upon the State

         23  Legislature to provide income tax credits, real

         24  property tax credits and public college tuition

         25  grants for members of the New York City Police
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          2  Department who reside in New York City.

          3                 Let me say from the outset that this

          4  Council has been involved with the issue of police

          5  residency since 1978. In fact, we attempted to pass

          6  by local law a residency requirement for police

          7  officers. It was, however, and very unfortunately

          8  struck down by the New York Court of Appeals.

          9                 Since then we have been urging the

         10  State Legislature to amend the State public officers

         11  law, and require City residency for police officers,

         12  obviously these efforts have been futile.

         13                 With the recent and tragic killing of

         14  Amadou Diallo, a street merchant killed by police

         15  officers, there is a renewed cry for police officers

         16  to live within the City so that they can be more

         17  sensitive to the issues which are local and to the

         18  people of the City of New York.

         19                 I would like to go on the record and

         20  state that Mr. Diallo was killed in my Council

         21  district.

         22                 Since that incident there have been

         23  numerous meetings with community residents and

         24  groups, as well as local enforcement personnel.

         25  There has been an attempt to quell the fears of the
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          2  community and restore their confidence in the Police

          3  Department.

          4                 In addition, I, and many of my

          5  colleagues in the City Council, had a constructive

          6  meeting with Mayor Giuliani. It is my belief that

          7  government has an obligation to seek and provide

          8  justice for those who have been wronged. Will

          9  enacting a police residency requirement provide

         10  justice for the Diallo family? Obviously no.

         11  However, it may serve or it may save the live of the

         12  next non-white person placed in similar

         13  circumstances, are not naive enough to think that a

         14  residency requirement or providing benefits to

         15  police officers to reside in the City is a panacea.

         16  There are prejudiced, racist and unenlightened

         17  persons who were born and raised in our City and

         18  coexist among us every day.

         19                 I am also not naive enough to think

         20  that all police officers are racists or ill-equipped

         21  to deal with diverse cultures, and on that note I

         22  certainly want to say for those of you who do the

         23  job fairly and you do it well, this City, this

         24  Council says thank you for a job that we acknowledge

         25  is a tough job. Thank you for doing it well, thank
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          2  you for your sensitivity.

          3                 Our actions must be predicated upon

          4  the belief that doing nothing is an acceptance of

          5  the status quo, and I think that by anyone's

          6  standards that is clearly unacceptable.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 At this time I will defer to Council

          9  Member Spigner, the prime sponsor of both bills.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

         11  Madame Chairwoman. I am just glad that you called

         12  this meeting this morning and have taken up Intro.

         13  258 and 652, both of which I think a good deal more

         14  of 258, because if we accomplish 258 we won't need

         15  652. But this is the real world in which we live,

         16  and given the make-up of the state legislature, it

         17  is probably unlikely in the relatively near future

         18  that they will give us the right to save the City.

         19                 There are a lot of reasons being

         20  given for opposing a residency bill. I can recall

         21  when they repealed residency requirements back in

         22  the sixties, they were talking about New York City

         23  needed a right to attract the best and the

         24  brightest. Well, they might have attracted the best

         25  and the brightest from around wherever the five or
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          2  the six counties were to be where they can come

          3  from, but it certainly accelerated the flight of the

          4  indigenous best and brightest, and that is not good

          5  for a city that has to have internal strength, as

          6  well as the ability to attract from outside as well.

          7                 If we do not put a stop to the drain

          8  that is permitted by a non-residency requirement, we

          9  will wind up ultimately with -- and it is not just

         10  white flight, but it will be middle class flight. We

         11  will have a foreign civil servant class whose only

         12  interest in New York City will be how many holidays

         13  and early retirement, vacations and sick time and

         14  all of the other -- and good salaries, and I am not

         15  opposed to that. But there would be one ingredient

         16  missing, they would have no loyalty to the City, to

         17  the goose that provided the eggs, the golden eggs

         18  continuously.

         19                 So, not only do we need a residency

         20  bill to stabilize, but to rebuild New York City's

         21  fragile middle class. You can do a tremendous amount

         22  more with public dollars than you can with private

         23  dollars, but unless we have an environment that is

         24  stabilized with people who have the ability and the

         25  commitment to be little league coaches and deacons
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          2  and choir masters and all of the other ancillary

          3  needs of a community, the apple is not going to be

          4  the kind of worldwide attraction that it now is.

          5                 So, for all of the reasons that our

          6  Chairlady stated, and I supported them 100 percent,

          7  there is an economic and social perhaps more

          8  economic than otherwise, as to why we need a

          9  residency requirement, not only for police officers,

         10  but the other exempt classes as well, need to be

         11  required to live in New York City and have more than

         12  just a casual commitment to its stability, its

         13  vitality and its growth and development.

         14                 It is going to be an uphill fight but

         15  we have got to start somewhere, and I think the

         16  passage of these two resolutions calling upon state

         17  action, again indicating that the City Council,

         18  representative of New York City's eight million

         19  people, and I believe that we have got the

         20  educational capacity and the physical strength to

         21  produce the caliber of people to serve our civil

         22  service needs. The only reason we won't have them is

         23  if we permit again this drain on our economy that is

         24  further endangered by lack of commitment by those

         25  who work for us.
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          2                 So, I want to thank you, Madame

          3  Chairlady, and I will thank my colleagues for their

          4  support, those who have sponsored, and hope that

          5  these two resolutions will receive a favorable vote

          6  at the appropriate time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you very

          8  much, Council Member Spigner.

          9                 At this time I would like the record

         10  to show that I would like to also sponsor both

         11  pieces of legislation, Resolution 252 and 652 --

         12  258, I am sorry. And 652.

         13                 Is there anyone else who would like

         14  to go on it at this time? Let the record show Karen

         15  Koslowitz. Council Member Koslowitz, Council Member

         16  Lasher, 652 for Mr. Stabile, Espada and Warden on

         17  both.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Actually I

         19  signed on at the Council meeting.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         21  DiBrienza is on. Thank you.

         22                 We would like to get our legislators

         23  on first, because I know they have busy schedules,

         24  so I would like to hear first from State Senator Dan

         25  Hevesi.
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          2                 Welcome, Senator, and thank you for

          3  coming.

          4                 SENATOR HEVESI: Thank you for hosting

          5  this. And thank you, Council members. I don't have

          6  prepared testimony for you, but I would like to

          7  speak extemporaneously as the Senate sponsor of

          8  S.3507, which is the residency requirement bill. And

          9  at the outset, for a little bit of context, I just

         10  would like to set the tone here. There has been a

         11  lot of discussion surrounding this issue of

         12  residency and everything is dramatized in the wake

         13  of the Diallo tragedy, but I want to clearly

         14  articulate and say, and this was expressed by a

         15  number of my colleagues in the State Legislature,

         16  that this is not an issue, the residency issue, this

         17  is not a black/white issue, this is not cop/anti-cop

         18  issue, this is not liberal/conservative, this is an

         19  issue where individuals who have a sense of a

         20  commitment that we need to make some improvements in

         21  the New York City Police Department feel that

         22  facilitating passage of this legislation is one of

         23  the ways to do that.

         24                 And I will also share with you that I

         25  am generally very conservative on criminal justice
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          2  issues and my voting record in the state senate

          3  reflect that nothing in support of residency is

          4  anti-cop, anti-union or in any way is meant to

          5  disparage the men and women of the New York City

          6  Police Department.

          7                 Let me start off essentially by

          8  telling you that about a month ago, I appeared in

          9  the Queens South, patrol borough Queens South

         10  Command, to address a newly graduated class of

         11  police officers that were about to be assigned to

         12  the precincts throughout Queens. And I told them

         13  what I tell everybody else, as I peered out and saw

         14  that almost every face in this crowd was white, and

         15  then I asked them how many of you live in the City

         16  of New York, and in this case a minority of the

         17  individuals actually lived in the City and I told

         18  them I have the greatest respect for what you do,

         19  you put your lives on the line every day. Police

         20  officers in the City of New York die with

         21  frightening regularity, I go to their funerals, they

         22  are heroic individuals, please don't take this as a

         23  slight to you, but I think we have a problem when

         24  individuals who represent the City of New York and

         25  who are sworn to uphold laws and promote public

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  safety in the City of New York don't adequate

          3  represent the communities they serve. And I said to

          4  them, I have a great respect for what you do, but

          5  understand where I am coming from on this.

          6                 Having said that, I am the Senate

          7  sponsor of 3507, let me tell you what the bill does

          8  to dispel some misconceptions that may be out there.

          9                 Under current New York State Law,

         10  public officers law, no municipality may enact a

         11  local piece of legislation that supersedes the

         12  public officer law, which currently prevents any

         13  member of the uniformed services from being subject

         14  to a residency requirement.

         15                 This piece of legislation, I want to

         16  give proper credit where credit is due, is an

         17  identical bill to an assembly piece of legislation

         18  that has been repeatedly sponsored by Assemblyman Al

         19  Vann, who has championed this issue for many years,

         20  and what the bill does is that it removes that

         21  exemption so it does not, if we were to enact this,

         22  it does not automatically mandate residency for

         23  police officers, firefighters, sanitation workers

         24  and correction officers, it gives the City of New

         25  York, this is the quintessential home rule, it gives
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          2  the City of New York the ability to enact a

          3  legislation to mandate residency in and of itself.

          4  That is what this bill does, and most importantly,

          5  we have to note for this debate that this residency

          6  requirement contained within the legislation is

          7  prospective. What does that mean? That means that

          8  any New York City police officer who currently does

          9  not live within the City of New York, were this

         10  legislation to be enacted and subsequently were this

         11  City Council to move ahead and adopt such a

         12  provision, no New York City police officer that does

         13  not live in the City of New York could either be

         14  required to leave the police force or move into the

         15  City of New York, within 30 days of enactment of the

         16  legislation, any new hire in the New York City

         17  Police Department would be forced to move in.

         18                 I know we have a lot of speakers

         19  here, so let me try and abridge my comments in

         20  support of this bill. But there are some important

         21  points that I want to get across.

         22                 First, a number of individuals have

         23  asserted that this residency is a kneejerk reaction

         24  to some tragedy. This is no kneejerk reaction. The

         25  fact that the legislation has been around and we
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          2  haven't been able to push it through the state

          3  legislature doesn't mean it is kneejerk, it means we

          4  haven't been able to push it through. And the fact

          5  that logically voices in support of this are

          6  amplified at a time when the City, the State and the

          7  Nation are focused on this issue, is logical, makes

          8  sense and I think makes it more likely now more than

          9  ever that we might be able to actually do something

         10  on it.

         11                 And other point, this is not a

         12  panacea, as Councilwoman Crux pointed out. Nobody

         13  here is suggesting that this will solve our

         14  problems. This is on in a series of things that we

         15  need to do to more adequately reflect the

         16  composition of this City on the New York City police

         17  force.

         18                 And having said that, just some

         19  statistics that some of us are familiar with. We

         20  currently have a New York City police force that is

         21  67.4 percent white. More alarmingly, the command

         22  ranks of the Police Department have an even greater

         23  disparity in a City that is about 43 percent white.

         24  Of the 449 captains in the New York City Police

         25  Department, 94 percent of them are white. Of the 237
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          2  inspectors and chiefs in the New York City Police

          3  Department who really run this Police Department, 92

          4  percent of them are white, and in the New York City

          5  police force as a whole, there are 55 percent, 55

          6  percent of the New York City police force live in

          7  the City of New York, 45 percent do not live in the

          8  City of New York and it is important to note that 75

          9  percent of the non-white New York City Police

         10  Officers live in the City of New York. And let me

         11  just read something to you and I will tell you where

         12  it comes from.

         13                 We must put on the street cops more

         14  accurately reflect the communities they serve. Most

         15  Police Departments have failed to attract sufficient

         16  numbers of minority police officers, particularly

         17  black males.

         18                 In the past 30 years, the percentage

         19  of black cops in New York City has risen less than

         20  four percent. This dismal increase in a City that is

         21  more than 25 percent black masks a deeper failure,

         22  black males make up the same nine percent of the

         23  NYPD that they did in 1967, those words of former

         24  Commissioner Bill Bratton, who, in fairness, is

         25  opposed to a residency requirement. This reflects
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          2  the problem we have here.

          3                 Now, let me do it this way. I am

          4  going to talk to you about the arguments against

          5  residency and address them down the line, and in

          6  doing that I think we can refute some of the

          7  assertions that have been made on this issue.

          8                 The first argument being essentially

          9  that it doesn't matter where the cops come from, it

         10  only matters whether they are good cops or bad cops,

         11  and we often hear the numbers cited that

         12  non-resident New York City police officers have a

         13  higher percentage or a higher aggregate number of

         14  CCRB complaints against them than City residents,

         15  and that very well may be accurate.

         16                 It is not the best police force that

         17  does not have a composition that reflects the

         18  composition of the City of New York, and there could

         19  be no time in this City's history that I can

         20  remember that are such sentiments more poignant than

         21  right now, because even if it is true that non-New

         22  York City residents are better cops, even if

         23  somebody was to make that assertion, and by the way,

         24  I repudiate the notion that we need to go outside

         25  the City of New York to attract the most qualified
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          2  applicants of the New York City police force, but

          3  even if somebody was to make that assertion, the

          4  fact that the communities in the City of New York

          5  have this fundamental mistrust of the New York City

          6  Police Department that exists right now, that we

          7  need to address, a police force that is

          8  overwhelmingly white, lends itself to sentiments

          9  where perception then becomes reality.

         10                 Now, let me give you an example,

         11  because I believe that everybody has paused to

         12  reflect a little bit about their own experiences in

         13  the wake of the oil, let me tell you one of mine.

         14                 When I was about 19 years old, I was

         15  stopped by a couple of New York City police officers

         16  having run a stop sign. I was guilty. Both white

         17  cops. They did the good cop/bad cop routine on me,

         18  and the cop who came over to my door of my car was

         19  so exceedingly rude that it defies description. The

         20  other cop was, you know, tried to placate me, okay?

         21  And I remember thinking at the time, I cannot

         22  understand why somebody would treat me with such

         23  disrespect as it were, okay? Now, flash ahead all of

         24  these years, and I am looking back on that

         25  experience, and I say to myself as I am looking at
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          2  these numbers that we see, what if whites in this

          3  City -- well, let me do it this way. What if the

          4  black representation in the City of New York on the

          5  police force was 70 percent, and I was a white

          6  minority in New York City and those two cops who

          7  stopped me were black and treated me like that. Now,

          8  I may not have no logical justification for

          9  believing that they treated me that way because I

         10  was white, I was a white minority on a black,

         11  predominantly black police force, but what other

         12  explanation might I have for such behavior that they

         13  perpetrated.

         14                 So, in keeping with that sentiment, I

         15  think it is important that we all try to understand

         16  exactly what is going on here in the City of New

         17  York.

         18                 We need to increase minority

         19  participation in New York City. The argument against

         20  residency that the economy of New York City is not

         21  one of the factors that should be noted, in other

         22  words, that current members of the New York City

         23  Police Department that don't live in the City are

         24  required to pay a resident tax, there is an economic

         25  argument to be made there. I am going to get a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  little righteous here with you, as taxpayers in the

          3  City of New York, and as somebody who represents

          4  300,000 taxpayers, we pay the salaries of New York

          5  City police officials, and you, the members of the

          6  City Council, decide in conjunction with the Mayor

          7  how many officers we should have, and we have a

          8  constitutional right, and I have the court cases

          9  here to show it to you, to impose residency

         10  requirements, as have a whole series of

         11  municipalities throughout the country, Philadelphia

         12  and Boston, St. Louis and Milwaukee, they all have

         13  done so, and we have a perfect right to do that. And

         14  there is an economic impact, although that is not

         15  the ostensible purpose of this legislation, but that

         16  impact is when you live in the City of New York, you

         17  are shopping in the stores of the City of New York,

         18  you are walking down the street, your are buying

         19  your car in the City of New York, you are doing all

         20  of those things that participate in the economy in

         21  the City.

         22                 Plus, most importantly, you are an

         23  integral part of the City of New York. What does

         24  that mean? That means that I am a better New York

         25  City police officer, because I grew up in this City

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  than if I grew up somewhere else. It is not a

          3  disparaging comment to someone who lives in Nassau,

          4  Suffolk or Westchester. It means that my world view

          5  is such that I have a greater understanding of the

          6  historical perspective, I have a greater

          7  understanding of the political sensitivities, the

          8  racial sensitivities that underpin what is going on

          9  right now in the City, and for that purpose I am in

         10  a better position to navigate the whole series of

         11  potentially explosive confrontations that I may have

         12  with members of the public. And if members of the

         13  public view me rightly or wrongly as somebody who

         14  has come in, some white, you know, outsider, from

         15  outside of the City of New York come in here and I

         16  perceive that I am being treated with disrespect,

         17  then we are going to have conflagrations continuing

         18  in the City of New York.

         19                 And I will remind everybody that in

         20  the wake of the Colin Fergusson tragic shooting on

         21  the Long Island Railroad, do you know what happened?

         22  Governor Pataki, along with the State Legislature,

         23  was very, very quick to enact legislation that gave

         24  police officers, New York City, Nassau and Suffolk

         25  County, the right to ride free on Long Island
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          2  Railroad trains. Why? They did it to make the trains

          3  safer.

          4                 So, what does that tell you? Let's

          5  think about this a little bit. If we have 45 percent

          6  of the New York City police force that does not live

          7  in the City of New York, thousands of them, if we

          8  had residency that more accurately reflected our

          9  compositions, would live on our streets. If putting

         10  more cops, by extension, on subway trains makes

         11  those trains safer, putting more cops in the

         12  neighborhoods of the City of New York makes those

         13  neighborhoods safer.

         14                 And let me say something else,

         15  because I know that some of the unions have

         16  addressed this issue. No one is suggesting, no one

         17  is suggesting that a police office should be

         18  required to live within the command that he serves

         19  them.

         20                 In fact, and I will tell you the

         21  source of my strong opinion on this, State Senator

         22  Al Walden, former New York City Police Captain

         23  Corrections Officer and distinguished member of the

         24  State Senate, has warned specifically, you cannot

         25  have police officers living within those commands.
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          2  You must make sure that they don't. It is a danger

          3  to them. It really is a danger to them. And so

          4  nobody is suggesting that, but there are plenty of

          5  places in New York City to live, and I am going to

          6  try and wrap up here, but I want to address the

          7  housing issue. Because housing is an issue hear all

          8  the time, it is cited as one of the reasons why you

          9  can't do residency.

         10                 Is it true that living in some places

         11  in New York City is more expensive than living in

         12  some places in Nassau and Suffolk and Westchester?

         13  Yes.

         14                 Is it true that living some places in

         15  Nassau and Suffolk and Westchester is more expensive

         16  than living in some places in the City of New York?

         17  Yes.

         18                 And I will remind everybody here that

         19  thousands and thousands and thousands of New York

         20  City employees, everybody with the exception of the

         21  uniformed services, is currently required to live

         22  within the City of New York, and a great percentage

         23  of those individuals make median incomes far below

         24  what New York City police officers make. And I will

         25  say something else here because I have heard the
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          2  argument put forward that you can't restrict

          3  someone's freedom to live where they want, and I

          4  will just tell you, before I was elected to the

          5  State Senate, I worked as the Director of Management

          6  and Analysis in the Queens Borough President's

          7  Office and was the liaison to the Police Department,

          8  and very tuned into labor issues. Not once in my

          9  four and a half years working for the City or

         10  subsequently did I -- and by the way, the inference

         11  I am drawing here doesn't mean that that is

         12  necessarily true, but I just wanted to make a point,

         13  I never once remember any of the labor union

         14  representing any of the other municipal employees

         15  saying we want to revoke the residency requirement,

         16  this is a sticking point with us, it is a

         17  fundamental freedom we must have. This was not

         18  something that they have put forward. Everyone seems

         19  to accept that you should, if you reside in the City

         20  -- if you work for the City of New York live in the

         21  City of New York, it is just truly the right thing

         22  to do.

         23                 Let me sum up here just by sharing

         24  with everyone the final picture here for me, which

         25  is this isn't going to do the trick, this isn't
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          2  going to solve the problem, we need to reconstitute

          3  the CCRB, there needs to be an independent police

          4  monitor, with the ability to independently

          5  discipline New York City police officers,

          6  recruitment really is the key. We have to have New

          7  York City public schools, which I will remind

          8  everybody, 85 percent minority, which is a problem

          9  in and of itself. But those schools need to be

         10  feeder schools into John Jay School of Criminal

         11  Justice and into the Police Department. We need to

         12  get the churches involved, we need to get the word

         13  out, we need to break the institutional and the

         14  cultural psychology and there is noting insidious

         15  about this. I am in my family business, cops get

         16  into the family business, people get into the family

         17  business, there is nothing wrong with that but we

         18  have got a fundamental more pressing concern that we

         19  really need to address and in fact, and finally, I

         20  promise this is finally, can we do it? Can we pass

         21  it in the State Legislature? And again, I said in

         22  the beginning, this is not kneejerk reaction, this

         23  stuff has been around for quite some time. There are

         24  two problems preventing passage, and I have the

         25  greatest respect for the unions that represent the
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          2  uniformed officers and workers of the City of New

          3  York that are currently exempt, they come to lobby

          4  me in Albany on a slew of pieces of legislation, and

          5  I give great weight to their sentiment, I happen to

          6  disagree with them on this. They are a very powerful

          7  institution, and to the extent that they are opposed

          8  for a series of reasons, and I respect their

          9  opposition, but to the extent that they are opposed

         10  to residency that is a major obstacle and a major

         11  hurdle to its passage.

         12                 The second obstacle is the fact that

         13  many of the legislators that represent the

         14  constituency outside of the City of New York that

         15  contain the thousands of New York City cops, will be

         16  definition be opposed to this.

         17                 But I will suggest that my support of

         18  this bill is not ironclad for this bill. Meaning, I

         19  would be willing to entertain some other

         20  possibilities in order to facilitate its passage.

         21                 What am I talking about? I am talking

         22  about getting the pension funds to work some kind of

         23  financial deal where they underwrite low interest

         24  mortgages for New York City residents. I am talking

         25  about the possibility of providing an exemption in
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          2  this residency bill that says after ten years of

          3  living in the City of New York will relax the

          4  residency requirement because we have fulfilled our

          5  fundamental objective. There are a series of things

          6  like that. This is not for show. This is not

          7  grandstanding, this is not for political purposes,

          8  this is to make one of the things that can make the

          9  New York City Police Department a better Police

         10  Department, I want to see it passed and I look

         11  forward to working with all of the members of the

         12  City Council to facilitate its passage.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you, Senator,

         15  for a very enlightening presentation. And certainly

         16  we look forward to you being the champion of this

         17  cause in the State Legislature, Senate precisely.

         18                 Are there questions from our Council

         19  Members?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         22  Stabile.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So what you

         24  are saying is, I am glad you are in the family

         25  business, basically you would want maybe the
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          2  possibility of putting a sunshine law to this thing

          3  where we would have some sort of agreement where

          4  after ten years we reevaluate this and look at this

          5  again to see if we have met our obligations?

          6                 SENATOR HEVESI: Not exactly. Not a

          7  sunset provision for the legislation.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: All right.

          9  Explain it to me then.

         10                 SENATOR HEVESI: Although things like

         11  that I would consider, I would consider doing that,

         12  particularly in light of the fact that since the

         13  attrition rate in the New York City Police

         14  Department is so high, even if the 1,500 new cops

         15  that we hire every year were all minority, it would

         16  take years in order to bring the numbers more

         17  accurately to reflect what we are doing.

         18                 But what I am specifically talking

         19  about is saying that, if a police officer under the

         20  law that we would pass in the state and you would do

         21  it here is enacted, then I have to be a New York

         22  City resident to be a new cop. Having lived in the

         23  City of New York for ten years as a cop, after that

         24  ten-year period or some other period, we would have

         25  fulfilled our fundamental purpose here, which is to
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          2  have somebody with that world experience and have

          3  somebody with the commitment to the City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: That is what

          5  I thought you meant, now let me ask you a question.

          6  What about the other services, like DOT and DEP and

          7  other departments that we have that cannot live in

          8  the City, I mean that have to live in the City,

          9  would it work reverse with them? Would this be a

         10  possibility of -- in other words, let's say if the

         11  DEP worked, and I am only using DEP for an example,

         12  who has already spent 20 years in the City, and he

         13  decided after 20 years, while his kids are getting

         14  bigger and he needs a smaller house, and he wants to

         15  move out to Nassau or Suffolk, would we look for

         16  this as a way also to filter in?

         17                 SENATOR HEVESI: It is an excellent

         18  question. I am a little leery about doing it,

         19  although I am also doing it in the way you speak of,

         20  although I am very sensitive to our need to be

         21  equitable, be fair to everybody and to do things

         22  that don't disadvantage individuals. So, I don't

         23  want to say to you yes or no on this issue, because

         24  this could be a potential negotiating point, and I

         25  want to leave all of the doors open here, I want
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          2  residency requirement passed in the State

          3  Legislature.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Just for the

          7  record, Council Member, DEP, Sanitation, all of

          8  these other agencies, do not carry guns. I think

          9  that is a big difference.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes, but,

         12  Madame Chair, we are really not talking about guns

         13  as a whole, I am talking about if a worker for DOT

         14  -- Sanitation don't carry guns either, and you

         15  still have a residency law with them -- I am talking

         16  about a DOT or DEP individual who has put in 35

         17  years of service for the City, lived in the City for

         18  35 years, now his children are married, him and his

         19  wife would like to move to the suburbs in a smaller

         20  house, right now the present law as is, the minute

         21  he moves, within 30 days after him moving, he is

         22  terminated from his job. Terminated. Would we also

         23  consider that as a plus to saying after he spent 25

         24  years of service in the City already, he had let's

         25  say five more years to go, and if he wanted to move
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          2  out to the suburbs, would we allow that?

          3                 I am not even talking the safety

          4  issue, I am talking the reality of the equality of a

          5  worker who -- you know, believe me, I happen to

          6  agree with 90 percent of what is going on, but what

          7  I am saying also is, if we are going to be fair, and

          8  if we are going to say, well, after a cop has served

          9  his ten years in the City or a fireman or a

         10  sanitation worker, or a corrections, and I came from

         11  sanitation, after he has done his ten years or 15

         12  years of service, in his last five years he wanted

         13  to go out to the suburbs because his income changed

         14  or whatever, or his wife or whatever, would we allow

         15  other departments to do the same?

         16                 SENATOR HEVESI: Let me just say for

         17  clarity's sake, what I said before is I don't want

         18  to rule it out.

         19                 Let me be very clear. I don't want to

         20  do something in the context of this discussion that

         21  would have some unanticipated or potentially

         22  negative consequences to the City of New York, and

         23  while the purpose here is to increase minority

         24  applicants to the New York City Police Department

         25  and create a greater sense of equity, were we to --
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          2  let me do it this way. I can't understand the

          3  context by which what you are suggesting would be

          4  necessary to facilitate passage of what we are

          5  suggesting. And as a result of the fact that doing

          6  what you are suggesting would have undeniably a

          7  negative economic consequence for the City of New

          8  York, and the fact that it doesn't help get us any

          9  further to passage of residency, I am not sure what

         10  we would achieve, whether it would be efficacious,

         11  but I don't rule anything out.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: But I believe

         13  it could have an effect on, a very positive effect,

         14  of increasing residency.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         16  Stabile, I don't want to encourage this personal

         17  dialogue. I am sure you can call the Senator. We

         18  have loads of people, I have other Council members

         19  and I want to acknowledge them, but I am sure we

         20  will get to your question in depth.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         24  Koslowitz.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 I don't have a question, I just want

          3  to personally acknowledge Senator Hevesi and say

          4  that I have the pleasure of working with him, and he

          5  being my representative.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Wonderful.

          7                 Council Member Spigner.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

          9  Madame Chair.

         10                 Senator Hevesi, believe me I am

         11  encouraged by your enthusiasm and energy that you

         12  bring to this discussion. It has been a long lonely

         13  fight, particularly in the state senate. We need

         14  your voice there, and even if I disagree with you on

         15  whether we give them after ten years, I am not even

         16  going to let that enter into my full encouragement

         17  for you to keep the pressure on and try to change

         18  the votes up there as you can.

         19                 I just want to make clear though, if

         20  someone wants to live in Nassau County or Suffolk

         21  County or Kalamazoo, let them but leave my job here.

         22  These are my jobs, this is my town, we have a

         23  responsibility to maintain the vitality and the

         24  viability of this City and we are not going to do it

         25  with an absentee Civil Service class, we are just
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          2  not going to be able to sustain this town with first

          3  the white flight, then the middle class flight and

          4  all we are left with is trying to produce with the

          5  very difficult population that is drained of

          6  contributors to the middle class through civil

          7  service opportunities.

          8                 So, keep the pressure on. Thanks for

          9  coming, give my regards to your pop.

         10                 SENATOR HEVESI: Will do.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you very

         12  much, Senator.

         13                 SENATOR HEVESI: My pleasure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Our next witness,

         15  and I certainly want to remind everyone that not

         16  long ago this next witness was sitting right up here

         17  with the rest of us Council Members, a very eloquent

         18  Borough President, a source of pride for all of the

         19  City Council members and certainly for the City of

         20  New York, in particular Manhattan, Manhattan Borough

         21  President, Virginia C. Fields, welcome.

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you

         23  so much, Madame Chair, and it is just a pleasure to

         24  see you in that seat now as Chairman of a very

         25  important Committee, and it is always a pleasure to
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          2  come across the street and continue to work with my

          3  colleagues in government on so many issues.

          4                 Good morning to all.

          5                 I am here, of course, to speak in

          6  support of reso number 258, as well as 652, which

          7  really serves sort of as an incentive. But directly

          8  with respect to reso 258, I fully support and

          9  continue to speak in behalf of residency for police

         10  officers living in New York City.

         11                 As we all know, police officers had

         12  to live in all five boroughs up until the state

         13  changed the law in 1962. So, I think that we should

         14  go back to that particular law because it would be a

         15  good thing.

         16                 Residency requirement for new hires I

         17  believe would certainly, one, decrease the wide gulf

         18  and intolerable gulf between New York's racial

         19  composition and the make-up of the police force.

         20                 It would also help rebuild necessary

         21  police and community trust that is essential to

         22  fighting crime but now in critically short supply.

         23  And when we look at the make-up of New York City,

         24  with over 60 percent of the population

         25  representative of African-Americans, Latinos and
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          2  Asians, that creates a very important base from

          3  which to recruit.

          4                 It also, I think, helps in terms of

          5  being able to put some other pieces in place through

          6  our schools and the Cadet Corps and we can really

          7  build in terms of making sure that we have a very

          8  strong base from which to recruit.

          9                 Evidence from New York and other

         10  cities indicate that a residence requirement for new

         11  hires would help narrow this all too glaring racial

         12  discrepancy that now exists on our force.

         13                 Philadelphia, for example, has a

         14  residency requirement. The population is roughly 49

         15  percent African-American and Latino, information

         16  that has been supplied to my staff by the federal

         17  bureau of justice statistics show that these groups

         18  comprise about 38 percent of Philadelphia police

         19  officers, and clearly that is a much closer racial

         20  match-up between police and citizens who live in

         21  Philadelphia.

         22                 In Boston, another City with the

         23  police residency requirement, about 37 percent of

         24  residents, African-American and Latino and those

         25  particular populations comprise 30 percent of City
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          2  police officers. And currently about three-fifths of

          3  all non-white police officers live in the City.

          4                 Resident offices would bring to the

          5  job firsthand knowledge about New York's ethnic,

          6  linguistic and cultural diversity. They would not be

          7  resentfully labeled suburban outsiders by New

          8  Yorkers that they encounter.

          9                 And I just want to stress that point

         10  because I think it really is important as we look at

         11  the immigration shifts that are occurring in the

         12  City, and the largest portion of immigrants that

         13  come into New York are indeed people of color, and

         14  to have a police force that lives in the City a part

         15  of the neighborhoods, a part of the community,

         16  understanding life in the cultural and the different

         17  customs I think is very important and obviously

         18  should be a part of training.

         19                 In a recent conversation with the

         20  Police Commissioner I did agree and I will be

         21  scheduling, and I hope that some of my colleagues in

         22  the Council will join me, to go to some of the

         23  training sessions at the Academy, because I am very

         24  interested in observing what really happens there

         25  and hopefully we can do some of that together.
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          2                 In a recent interview, Philadelphia's

          3  Police Commissioner John Timoney, at one time the

          4  New York Police Department's second in command,

          5  remarked that because of Philadelphia's residency

          6  rule, everybody seems to know a cop because they

          7  live in the neighborhoods, clearly they have a

          8  bigger stake in the City.

          9                 Timoney also said that he never hears

         10  Philadelphia officers referred to as an occupation

         11  force. A common theme unfortunately that we hear too

         12  often in New York City.

         13                 Critics contain that a residential

         14  requirement will not reduce police misconduct. They

         15  cite statistics showing that a disproportionately

         16  large number of charges of abusive behavior and

         17  corruption are made against officers who are City

         18  residents.

         19                 That may very well be true, but it

         20  does not justify maintaining the status quo.

         21                 Currently resident officers, and

         22  especially minority officers, are concentrated on

         23  the lowest ranks of the NYPD where the risks and the

         24  temptations of misconduct are greatest.

         25                 It is not surprising that they are
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          2  accused of a higher proportion of bad decisions. But

          3  it is also not excusable. So, I would strongly

          4  advocate a policy of zero tolerance for police

          5  misconduct built on enhanced training, stricter

          6  accountability, and better salaries.

          7                 Short of residency requirements which

          8  goes to your reso number 652, other measures might

          9  increase the proportion of City dwelling officers,

         10  such as what you have proposed, tax credits, public

         11  college tuition grants, et cetera. I also include

         12  other measures, as offering mortgage assistance to

         13  officers buying homes in the City and more vigorous

         14  recruiting campaigns in minority communities.

         15                 I know within the New York City

         16  Housing Authority an initiative was starting

         17  providing free rent for officers moving into the New

         18  York City Housing Authority, and while the numbers

         19  have not been great, they are growing. And I think

         20  that simply shows that when we are creating and we

         21  really give thought to how we might be able to make

         22  some of this happen, we can see some different

         23  results.

         24                 But overall a residency requirement

         25  for new hires obviously would be the single, most
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          2  effective way, to make the New York Police

          3  Department more representative of New York City.

          4                 In the words of the Mayor's Task

          5  Force on Police Community Relation, officers' sense

          6  of estrangement from the neighborhoods they patrol

          7  would be lessened, just as familiarity and

          8  identification with the City as their homes, as well

          9  as a place of work, would increase.

         10                 So, overall, again, I think it is a

         11  very positive move. I am very glad to see the

         12  Council reintroduce both of these -- at least Reso

         13  No. 258 and introducing for the first time Reso 652,

         14  and if passed, I think it will go a long way in

         15  helping us address a problem and a concern that we

         16  all have in this City. But the good news is all of

         17  us are now working together, moving in a way to try

         18  to bring some recommendations and some solutions

         19  that I think will certainly serve the City as a

         20  whole.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you, Borough

         22  President Virginia Fields, former New York City

         23  Councilwoman. You know I have to say that.

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: There are some
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          2  comments.

          3                 Council Member Spigner.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Just one

          5  question, comment.

          6                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You made

          8  mention of reintroducing 258, and I am glad you did

          9  because the concept of residency as an issue for

         10  this Council is not kneejerk, not new. I have been

         11  in this Council since 1974 and shortly thereafter

         12  this was an issue that we brought to the forefront.

         13  We met with the same resistance from the State

         14  Legislature, but we have introduced it and

         15  reintroduced, and we will keep introducing and

         16  reintroducing until we get what we determine is

         17  fairness and equity for New York City and its

         18  residents.

         19                 Thank you for your support.

         20                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: And we

         21  thank you for that.

         22                 Thank you so much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: For the record, I

         24  again want to say that this police residency had

         25  been introduced in 1978, Council Member Virginia
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          2  Fields, so I am so glad -- he didn't want to say how

          3  long ago it went back, but you know I was going to

          4  do that.

          5                 Thank you, again, so much.

          6                 Now, at this time I want to extend

          7  the courtesies of our elected officials who have to

          8  be some place else. Please let's have the

          9  Administration and joining us Steven Fishner, the

         10  Criminal Justice Coordinator, Office of the Mayor,

         11  Chief Michael Markman, from the New York City Police

         12  Department.

         13                 Mr. Fishner, would you like anyone

         14  else up at the dais with you?

         15                 MR. FISHNER: I would just like to

         16  introduce the various people who are accompanying

         17  me, and Chief Markman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Please.

         19                 MR. FISHNER: Deputy Commissioner

         20  George Grasso is here. My Deputy Coordinator

         21  Frederick Patrick has worked on the issues that we

         22  are going to be talking about this morning and is

         23  here, and my legislative counsel Mary Porter is also

         24  present today.

         25                 Good morning, Chairwoman Cruz and
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          2  members of the City Council. I want to thank you for

          3  the opportunity to appear on behalf of Mayor

          4  Giuliani or be heard on Resolution 652 which calls

          5  upon the state legislature to provide income tax

          6  credits, real estate credits and public college

          7  tuition grants for uniformed members of the New York

          8  City Police Department.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me one

         10  moment, please. I just want to make sure that we

         11  have a statement. Do we have your statement?

         12                 MR. FISHNER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We do?

         14                 MR. FISHNER: The statement arrived.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We are looking for

         16  a statement. May I have a statement, please, from

         17  the Administration? Thank you very much.

         18                 We have been joined by the Speaker of

         19  the New York City Council, Peter Vallone, and we are

         20  just in the middle of the beginning of hearing

         21  testimony.

         22                 MR. FISHNER: I would like to greet

         23  the Speaker as well. Good morning, Mr. Speaker.

         24                 And I also thank you for the

         25  opportunity to comment upon resolution 258 which
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          2  calls upon the State Legislature to adopt

          3  legislation requiring police officers who have

          4  joined the Police Department since September 1, 1986

          5  and future uniformed members of the Police

          6  Department to be City residents.

          7                 As we meet here today, a class of

          8  more than 1,400 recruits is finishing their studies

          9  and training and preparation for graduation later

         10  this month, and City residents comprise 70 percent

         11  of the class.

         12                 They are going to join a Police

         13  Department with a make-up of almost 55 percent City

         14  residents, and an academy class of 70 percent City

         15  residents is an accomplishment that the NYPD can be

         16  proud of. But in spite of this accomplishment, Mayor

         17  Giuliani and Police Commissioner Safir have made a

         18  commitment to do what is very important, and that is

         19  to increase the percentage of City residents so that

         20  the New York City Police Department will become even

         21  more diverse and even more reflective of the City

         22  that it serves.

         23                 The Mayor supports passage of

         24  resolution 652 because income tax credits, real

         25  estate tax credits and college tuition grants are
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          2  going to encourage City residency, and I want to

          3  pledge on behalf of the Administration that we look

          4  forward to working with you in developing proposals

          5  and analyzing various options for ways to go, and in

          6  hopefully advocating for a common agenda in Albany

          7  in making those incentives possible so that we can

          8  reach our common goal of increasing City residency

          9  among the Police Department.

         10                 But a legislative strategy comes with

         11  certain drawbacks. It has no guarantee of success,

         12  even a successful strategy will take time, and in

         13  the interim we cannot afford to wait for Albany to

         14  act, and we have not waited, and that is why on

         15  February 25th Mayor Giuliani and Police Commissioner

         16  Safir announced a comprehensive initiative for the

         17  recruitment of City residents in the NYPD, and for

         18  the retention of officers presently in the Police

         19  Department who live in the City.

         20                 The first element of this was the

         21  residency incentives program, and it is structured

         22  like the proposal in the resolution 652. It begins

         23  with career points on promotional exams.

         24                 Commissioner Safir, upon coming to

         25  the Police Department and becoming Police
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          2  Commissioner, introduced through his powers as the

          3  Commissioner, bonus points on the application exam

          4  for the Police Department.

          5                 This is going to be extended to

          6  promotional exams. City residents will have a

          7  competitive advantage on promotions on exams and on

          8  lists with as compared to non-City residents. That

          9  will apply to every promotional exam. The

         10  Sergeants Exam, Lieutenants Exam and Captains Exam.

         11                 Rent subsidies. Borough President

         12  Fields referred to the New York City Housing

         13  Authority Program that provides rent subsidies to

         14  members of the Police Department who live in

         15  developments and perform community service in their

         16  community, and that is a program that is going to be

         17  expanded.

         18                 We are also working on a home

         19  ownership program which will utilize funding sources

         20  from banks and institutions, other lending

         21  institutions, money, mortgage institutions, and the

         22  purpose of that, it is being developed now

         23  cooperatively with the Police Department and Housing

         24  Preservation, the Department of Housing Preservation

         25  and Development. The purpose of it is to provide
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          2  mortgage relief so that police officers can afford

          3  to buy homes in the City more easily, so that those

          4  who are here will stay.

          5                 And what it will do is it will be

          6  similar to loan forgiveness programs that many

          7  colleges and universities now have. They will get

          8  the benefit of the subsidy if -- and they will

          9  continue to receive the benefit of the subsidy over

         10  time, but if the person who receives the subsidy

         11  leaves the City, then the benefit of that is lost

         12  and there will be a financial liability.

         13                 We are also going to provide

         14  preferences in HPD housing programs for members of

         15  the Police Department, and that will have a double

         16  impact. That will have the impact of encouraging

         17  home ownership in New York City, and it will also

         18  have the impact of encouraging police officers to

         19  locate in some areas of the City where their 24-hour

         20  presence when off duty will have the greatest

         21  effect, because some of the areas that have the

         22  greatest housing issues also face some of the most

         23  serious crime issues, and what is good for those

         24  neighborhoods is good for the Police Department,

         25  because job number one in the Police Department is
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          2  crime reduction.

          3                 And then in addition to these, there

          4  is a community outreach and recruitment program.

          5  There will be recruitment stations in libraries and

          6  other public areas, all targeted towards City

          7  residents.

          8                 We are going to do outreach to

          9  fraternal organizations and religious organizations

         10  and community organizations, all targeted to City

         11  residents.

         12                 And the third thing is, a multi-media

         13  campaign which the Council provided the funds for in

         14  the latest budget modification, which will be a

         15  multi-media add campaign which is going to be

         16  focused toward City residents and increasing City

         17  residency. All of these programs are directed toward

         18  increasing the diversity and increasing the City

         19  residency percentage of the New York City Police

         20  Department.

         21                 We also will be expanding our Cadet

         22  Corps, which brings college students in the City

         23  into the Police Department. We will be working and

         24  are working with the Board of Education to develop a

         25  high school, a law enforcement high school, which
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          2  will be a high school of academic excellence, which

          3  will encourage public school children to advance in

          4  the law enforcement field as they advance

          5  professionally and academically through life.

          6                 The second resolution that I would

          7  like to comment on is Resolution 258 regarding

          8  residency. And I think very eloquently Senator

          9  Hevesi explained the political realities of this.

         10                 I think that it is, as a practical

         11  matter, not possible that that legislation is going

         12  to become law in Albany, and I think the Mayor has

         13  been really very clear that it really is something

         14  that politically speaking is each year and has been,

         15  as has been alluded to, dead on arrival.

         16                 Reasonable people can disagree about

         17  whether there should be a residency requirement, but

         18  whatever the merit or lack of merit of a residency

         19  requirement is, mounting a futile political effort

         20  to enact such a requirement for symbolic purposes

         21  only is going to raise false expectations, it is

         22  going to be counterproductive and it is going to

         23  diminish our ability to accomplish the other things

         24  that we all agree on.

         25                 In conclusion, I call upon you to
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          2  enact Resolution 652 to call upon the Legislature to

          3  provide incentives. I also call upon the Council to

          4  support the Police Department's recruitment program

          5  which is going to accomplish the important goal that

          6  you, too, want to accomplish, and increase the

          7  number and percentage of City residents in the

          8  Police Department, and I just want to finish by

          9  saying the Police Department in so many different

         10  areas has produced a record of accomplishment that

         11  is unsurpassed by any other Police Department in the

         12  country, but if we are to improve upon that record,

         13  we will need the continuing support of the Council,

         14  and the incentive necessary to recruit and retain

         15  the best officers possible, and yes, the best

         16  officers possible from among the ranks of the people

         17  of the City of New York.

         18                 And so, I would like to thank for the

         19  opportunity to appear, and if you have any questions

         20  for me, we would be glad to address them.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We have not only

         22  questions but statements. But certainly my Speaker

         23  has a statement that he would like to make, because

         24  there are pressing things that he has to move on to.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much,
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          2  Criminal Justice Coordinator, Mr. Fishner. I think

          3  that was excellent testimony, and I am glad to see

          4  you here, too, Chief Markman.

          5                 I just want to get some things on the

          6  record straight.

          7                 First of all, obviously you support

          8  one resolution and you oppose another resolution

          9  because of the difficulty of passing at state, and I

         10  can understand that. But I just want to hearken back

         11  to a little more than a decade ago when Mayor Koch

         12  was Mayor, Archie Spigner and I actually ushered

         13  through a piece of legislation which required City

         14  residency for City workers and particularly police

         15  officers, and we thought we had a good case and then

         16  we lost it in the court of appeals. So, there is no

         17  question about the fact that we cannot mandate

         18  residency when the state legislature has passed

         19  specific legislation excluding it, as they have done

         20  with the police.

         21                 But that doesn't mean that it changes

         22  our desire to have it done, and I just want to go

         23  back to 1991 when we were successfully able to get

         24  Safe City - Safe Streets passed by very reluctant

         25  houses of the legislature. It was one of the most

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  difficult experiences I have had in my life with

          3  then Mayor Dinkins because of the distrust, the very

          4  distrust that you are talking about, the

          5  impossibility of getting anything passed in the

          6  legislature when it came to police officers. We were

          7  able to do it for one reason only: We were able to

          8  guarantee the State Legislature that we were going

          9  to have community policing. We were going to have

         10  police officers assigned to the precincts. We were

         11  going to have the cops on the beat. We were going to

         12  have cops that knew the neighborhoods. We were going

         13  to have neighborhoods that knew the cops.

         14                 As a matter of fact, we had to sign

         15  an agreement and set goals in every single precinct

         16  that there would be X amount of cops in every single

         17  precinct.

         18                 I don't know if you were here at that

         19  time, or Chief Markman was here, that was part of

         20  getting a very reluctant legislature who didn't

         21  trust the City of New York, because up until the

         22  time frankly that this Council came on board, none

         23  of the promises, none of the promises that were ever

         24  made about building up our police force were ever

         25  kept. It is only since this Council, no matter who
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          2  the Mayor has been, through three different Mayors,

          3  that we have been able to rebuild the Criminal

          4  Justice entire network in the City of New York, and

          5  no matter who the Mayor is going to be this time

          6  around, I think that the record of this Council will

          7  establish that we want minimum numbers of police and

          8  we want maximum numbers of police officers assigned

          9  to our communities. And when I say minimum numbers,

         10  I mean we don't want them reduced beyond the numbers

         11  that they are now, which is what happened every

         12  single year. Every time a Mayor wanted to save $80

         13  million, he or she would not hire 1,000 cops, that

         14  was the quickest way because there were no matching

         15  funds for police officers at the time.

         16                 We don't want to see that done, nor

         17  do you want to see that done. But that doesn't mean

         18  that we shouldn't express the ultimate goal. The

         19  best thing to do is to have all of our people

         20  residing in the City of New York, working in the

         21  City of New York, the way it is in most of the other

         22  counties in the State. If there was going to be one

         23  state law that said you can't exclude New York City

         24  workers from working in Orange County or Clinton

         25  County or any of these other counties, fine. What is
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          2  good for one county should be good for all, but why

          3  should it be only the City of New York that is

          4  precluded from passing a law which requires police

          5  officers or others to be in the City. You know, it

          6  makes no sense.

          7                 So, I think, and I think it would

          8  probably be the consensus of the Council, based upon

          9  my own previous experience, that we should go on

         10  record, even though at this time we may not be able

         11  to pass it, but we should continue to go on record

         12  saying that the City of New York feels that our best

         13  path to safety for all of our citizens is to have a

         14  cop on the beat who knows the people and the people

         15  who know the cop. That is the answer and that is the

         16  secret to reduction of crime, no matter what anybody

         17  else says. No many how many roving vans you have

         18  throughout the City of New York, the secret to crime

         19  prevention is a cop on the street, a foot soldier.

         20  That is the secret. Everything else, in my humble

         21  opinion, is good, but irrelevant to what we are

         22  trying to do here.

         23                 So, it seems to me that while I

         24  respect and agree with the fact that you support one

         25  of the resolutions, I can't agree that the reason we
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          2  are not going to support the other resolution is

          3  because it is too difficult or impossible to pass,

          4  and I don't see how that is going to make it more

          5  difficult for us to pass anything else that we want

          6  to pass, because if they are not going to pass one,

          7  certainly they are going to look to something else,

          8  rather than close the door on everything we ask for

          9  in the State.

         10                 MR. FISHNER:  On the subject of

         11  deployment of police officers, I don't want to

         12  address that in detail, it is way off the scope of

         13  the hearing. Only except to say that, it is very

         14  gratifying that in community meetings and in Town

         15  Hall meetings with the Mayor, when even in the

         16  recent weeks when things have been so highly

         17  charged, that the number one question, and the

         18  number one issue that people raise when they have an

         19  opportunity to talk to the Mayor directly and talk

         20  to the Police Commissioner directly is send us more

         21  cops. We want more cops in our precincts. And I have

         22  to say, at this particular time that is tremendously

         23  gratifying.

         24                 I also want to say that the

         25  strategies of the Police Department in having both
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          2  precinct-based and also other kinds of specialized

          3  units have been tremendously successful.

          4                 On the subject of the two

          5  resolutions, I think again just as a matter of

          6  strategy on the residency requirement being

          7  something that is symbolic, as you acknowledged, I

          8  think as a Council, when we approach the

          9  legislature, when you approach the legislature, we

         10  as a City approach the legislature, I think if I

         11  were on the receiving end of these two resolutions,

         12  I would take the resolution that we all agree on, on

         13  incentives, that is I think possible, and we can

         14  accomplish many of the same things and already are

         15  without state legislation, I think if I were a State

         16  Legislator and I saw that there were two proposals

         17  and one proposal was required residency and the

         18  other was incentives, I would say I have to pick one

         19  of these, because if you are a state legislator, if

         20  I am a state legislator, I cannot take your advice

         21  on both of those, they are in the system -- you

         22  would not vote for incentives if you have also voted

         23  and enacted legislation requiring residency. And I

         24  would hate to see us do something that dissipates

         25  our efforts, and I think if you were to vote two
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          2  inconsistent resolutions and send them along, you

          3  would be putting yourself in an illogical position.

          4                 SPEAKER VALLONE: You admit if we had

          5  the residency we wouldn't need the incentives?

          6                 MR. FISHNER: As a matter of theory,

          7  yes.

          8                 SPEAKER VALLONE: So you don't have to

          9  vote for -- you can't vote for both, it would be one

         10  or the other.

         11                 MR. FISHNER: No, but my point is that

         12  we live in the real world and not the theoretical or

         13  symbolic world.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you.

         15                 Council Member Stabile, before you

         16  jump out of the seat. Council Member Stabile.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: First of all,

         18  I think some of the remarks you made were insulting,

         19  to be very honest. And I am a so-called Councilman

         20  who is part of the Administration.

         21                 When you tell me it is a futile

         22  effort for this Council to sit here on a Friday

         23  afternoon to try to put legislation together, and

         24  tell us more or less no matter what you do it is not

         25  going to be up in Albany, so it is a futile attempt
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          2  is a total insult to the whole City Council.

          3                 I don't know how the Speaker feels, I

          4  don't know how the Chairman feels, but I feel

          5  personally it is not the right way to say it. Like

          6  whatever you do, it doesn't mean anything.

          7                 Let me just touch on something else.

          8                 MR. FISHNER: Just as a point, I

          9  certainly hope you realize I intended no offense.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         11                 Let me touch on something else. We

         12  are talking about -- before we were talking about

         13  black and white issues, let me just go back a little

         14  time in history.

         15                 One of the greatest living, at that

         16  time before he was killed in Sicily, a man named

         17  Joseph Petrocini, okay? Joseph Petrocini was

         18  recruited for the Police Department from the

         19  Sanitation Department, which a lot of people don't

         20  even know. He was a sanitation worker and he worked

         21  in Little Italy, but because he had a feel of the

         22  community, and he spoke Italian and he came from

         23  Sicily, and he was a strong influence of the Mafia

         24  and black hand going on, they recruited him and made

         25  him a police officer, only for the reason because he
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          2  spoke the language in the community - the baker, the

          3  grocery store man, the one who sold apples on the

          4  corner knew him, they respected him, they confided

          5  in him.

          6                 I listen to a lot of the stuff that

          7  is being said, and I walked in here with totally a

          8  mixed sentiment because being a City worker and

          9  coming from City workers families and coming from a

         10  police officer's family, I see a lot of things that

         11  go wrong.

         12                 One of the things that hit me here,

         13  really hit hard, is the fact of the testing,

         14  allowing testing. Do you mean to tell me, if a

         15  police officer lives in Nassau County for 15 years,

         16  had a great record, the Police Officer comes on the

         17  job one year, two years, three years, takes the test

         18  of the sergeant. We are going to give him points

         19  over someone else? Just because the fact that he

         20  lives in the City now and the other ones who did

         21  give their service to the City are being pushed to

         22  the side? Now to me we are talking another form of

         23  discrimination, because here is a police officer who

         24  has given 15 years to the City, took the test of

         25  sergeant, and now because one point can make a
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          2  difference on that list to where you make the test

          3  or you don't make the test, that list.

          4                 Now, you are saying to me that you

          5  are going to give points to people that live in the

          6  City, but what about the ones who have already moved

          7  out from Nassau, or Suffolk, and who have been out

          8  there for a good many years which we allow? Should

          9  they be penalized now?

         10                 I mean, prior to the law going in

         11  effect, why should anyone be penalized if a good

         12  police officer is qualified?

         13                 Now, not to follow Rudy Washington on

         14  a remark, but I have to get this out of my system. I

         15  am of Italian descent. I had a problem in a local

         16  precinct with a lieutenant who was arrogant, asked

         17  female young girls that he picked up hanging out in

         18  parks, not with drugs, not with guns, not any

         19  violence, just because they were there after 9:00,

         20  asked them if they liked other women, these were

         21  like 14, 15-year-old girls. So I brought it to the

         22  Police Department as an issue. This Police

         23  Lieutenant made a remark in the precinct, "I could

         24  drop a bag of cocaine in Al Stabile's car at any

         25  time. I could drop a crack vial." I just found out
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          2  two days ago that he was put back on the street and

          3  he is attached to the Street Crime Unit, narcotics.

          4                 When I hear stuff like this, I really

          5  have serious problems with the integrity of how we

          6  are dealing. And you want to know something else? I

          7  am going to be very honest with you, I am 100

          8  percent supportive of the Police Department, I love

          9  the Police Department, I think they do a fantastic

         10  job, and I believe there are problems and there are

         11  tragedies and they have to be addressed, but I don't

         12  believe we should discriminate against an officer

         13  who is of the quality, who passed the test, should

         14  be taken -- points should be added to someone who

         15  just took the test, just cause he lives in the State

         16  of New York should get the points ahead.

         17                 The part that I mentioned before

         18  about Petrocini, growing up in East New York and

         19  growing up as a child, he was my idol. I thought he

         20  was a true hero. I believe until today he was the

         21  first New York City officer, only police officer

         22  ever killed in the line of duty out of the United

         23  States of America, okay?

         24                 I believe very strongly in him. We

         25  talked -- the newspaper covers beautiful articles
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          2  about all of these gangsters who -- unfortunately I

          3  am of Italian descent, but he was an Italian who

          4  truly made an impact, plus he started the first bomb

          5  squad in New York City. He was a real credit to his

          6  people and the people of this City.

          7                 The reason why he became a cop in

          8  reality is because he spoke the language and he knew

          9  the neighborhood.

         10                 When I have police officers who I

         11  question in my area, and I cover the 100, the 106

         12  and the 102, I have a captain in the 102, Captain

         13  Lavin. I would take ten more of him in the City of

         14  New York. He is a great captain. I have other

         15  captains who are not so responsive. But I will tell

         16  you something, I admire when a police officer

         17  responds to what we ask them, even if it is a simple

         18  problem with a situation which becomes dangerous by

         19  schools, parents double parking, or burglaries or

         20  pushings, I will tell you the police are responsive

         21  in all three of my precincts. I have no problem with

         22  that.

         23                 But my problem is I don't want to see

         24  good cops who put their years in, who are up for

         25  exams, and are put to the side. I believe honestly
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          2  we definitely should have more people in the

          3  hierarchy of the Department. That is a definite

          4  thing.

          5                 And one of the things I feel very

          6  sadly about was when Wilbur Chapman left, because I

          7  thought Wilbur Chapman definitely was a man who

          8  really had a great, great future in the hierarchy of

          9  the Department.

         10                 Dealing with him in DOT, and I am

         11  sure my colleagues agree with this, he is a very,

         12  very excellent Commissioner. But you want to know

         13  what makes him excellent? He talks to us. He gets on

         14  the phone. We can relate to him. We can deal with

         15  him. But I just feel that it is not a futile attempt

         16  to try to put something through, because sooner or

         17  later Albany is going to have to wake up to the fact

         18  that we feed Albany. This City feeds Albany, and

         19  when the legislators and the senators get off their

         20  high horse and realize that we are the lifeblood of

         21  this state, the City of New York, and we are the

         22  City of New York, and we are the capital of the

         23  world, they better wake up to the fact that we are

         24  not putting a futile attempt, we are going to see

         25  what we want to do to make our City better and
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          2  shine. And I believe the Mayor feels the same way.

          3  He wants the City to shine and he wants it on.

          4                 So, I think any legislation we do put

          5  forth is just a way of us getting a message across

          6  to Albany and we really want to push it to that

          7  extent.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. FISHNER: May I?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I would like to

         11  have you hold back at this time, because of the

         12  urgency of it, I am going to recommend that we vote

         13  both legislative pieces out, while the Committee

         14  members are here.

         15                 Could I get a roll call? However,

         16  testimony is going to continue. We have the members

         17  here and we are going to get a roll call on both

         18  pieces of legislation now. Thank you.

         19                 Roll call, please.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Cruz.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Koslowitz.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Aye on

         24  both.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am sorry, I hear
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          2  I have to speak into the mic. I will do this again.

          3                 Yes on both resolutions. Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lasher.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LASHER: Yes on both

          6  resolutions.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Espada.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes on

         11  both.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Quinn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes on both.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: May I be

         16  excused to explain my vote?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: First of all,

         19  on the tax incentive you have 100 percent yes on me,

         20  652.

         21                 I would like to hold my vote open

         22  until I hear from some of the police representatives

         23  and from various organizations before I cast my vote

         24  on 258. Can I have that permission, Madame Chair?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Certainly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Continue the roll

          4  call, please. I would like to leave the vote open

          5  until Council Member Warden returns.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

          7  at seven in the affirmative, none in the negative,

          8  and no abstentions on 652; and six in the

          9  affirmative on 258, and the vote is still open.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you very

         11  much.

         12                 Is Norm Siegel still here? Okay, Norm

         13  is on his way out, Council Member. I would like to

         14  ask him to please join the Police Department.

         15                 MR. FISHNER: Madame Chairlady, with

         16  all due respect --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Let's continue.

         18  Norm, hold one second.

         19                 Mr. Fishner, there is a question from

         20  Council Member Spigner and then we will continue

         21  with your testimony.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Fishner.

         24                 MR. FISHNER: Madame Chairlady, I

         25  didn't have an opportunity to respond to Council
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          2  Member Stabile, and I have a request of the Chair.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I can certainly

          4  concede. Thank you.

          5                 MR. FISHNER: With all due respect,

          6  Madame Chairlady, to you and to the members of the

          7  Council, I am not the specialist in Council

          8  parliamentary rules, perhaps I should be, but I must

          9  wonder about the purpose of this hearing when my

         10  testimony was interrupted for the purpose of a vote

         11  and there is an audience of other witnesses with

         12  various points of view who are here to speak to the

         13  Council for the ostensible purpose of providing

         14  information that will be useful to you, for the

         15  ostensible purpose perhaps of persuading Council

         16  members who might have open minds as to at least

         17  some of the issues or all of the issues, and we have

         18  been interrupted by a vote. I think that the purpose

         19  of appearing here is really a futile one, that the

         20  outcome is, whatever it may be, is predetermined.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Your comments have

         22  been duly noted. Thank you, Mr. Fishner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: A question

         24  for Mr. Fishner, if I may?

         25                 Mr. Fishner, as it relates to your
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          2  opposition to 258, and I want to commend you and the

          3  Mayor --

          4                 MR. FISHNER: May I respond to Council

          5  Member Stabile?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, please.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: And if you

          8  noted, I was the only one who didn't vote.

          9                 MR. FISHNER: I will keep my remarks

         10  brief because I don't want to interfere with the

         11  timing and I don't want to get in the way of the

         12  next vote.

         13                 Council Member Stabile, I want to

         14  thank you for mentioning Detective Petrocini, who

         15  was recruited from the Sanitation Department. One of

         16  the elements of the Police Department's strategy is

         17  to recruit and promote among the ranks of the

         18  traffic safety agents and school safety agents two

         19  groups that are heavily minority groups, two groups

         20  in which there is tremendous representation of

         21  African-Americans, to name a particular minority

         22  group, and groups that are all City, 100 percent

         23  City residents, and there will be promotional, there

         24  is a career tract development plan and a promotional

         25  exam that will be developed that will do just what
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          2  you had talked about.

          3                 And on the subject of the complaint

          4  that you are bringing to my attention, we will look

          5  into that expeditiously, I can assure you of that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Mr. Fishner?

          7                 MR. FISHNER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I want to

          9  commend you and the Mayor for all of these good

         10  points which I agree with and certainly you can

         11  count on my efforts in having them accomplished and

         12  implemented into policy.

         13                 As your objections to 258 appear to

         14  be based solely on the inevitability of the vote in

         15  the State Legislature, let not that daunting

         16  challenge deter us from doing what is right for the

         17  City of New York. Let us not let that deter us.

         18                 We have an obligation, and I know

         19  your Mayor is concerned about the future of this

         20  City, the unions are very formidable, no doubt about

         21  it. They are very influential. The state legislators

         22  who have large number of City employees and

         23  potential, they want to send their children here,

         24  they view New York City as a career opportunity for

         25  their children, they do 20 years here and then they

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  can drive a bus in Rockland County for $5 an hour

          3  while they get whatever our -- let that not deter us

          4  from doing what is right.

          5                 Many of the legislative and social

          6  accomplishments in the history of this country would

          7  have never been achieved had we been deterred by the

          8  size of the opposition.

          9                 I can mention a few, but you know

         10  them as well as I do. So, if we believe that

         11  residency for City employees is the right thing, it

         12  represents good public policy, let's pass this

         13  resolution, let's support it, let the Mayor use his

         14  influence with people like Guy Valella, who while he

         15  is a City resident, or Al Stabile, you know,

         16  whatever their thoughts are who have reservations

         17  about it, try to convince them that it represents

         18  good public policy to have a civil service force

         19  that is a commitment to New York City and not just a

         20  paycheck.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Before we move any

         23  further, I know you have been very patient, may be

         24  please acknowledge New York PD Transit District

         25  Number 13 that is sitting in our gallery. Welcome to
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          2  the City Council.

          3                 Would you please rise. May we please

          4  acknowledge them. Thank you. Welcome.

          5                 This is the Explorer Program? We want

          6  you to know that you are our future, we believe in

          7  you and you are going to replace all of us, so do a

          8  good job, would you?

          9                 Thank you. Come again.

         10                 Mr. Fishner, we have a new member to

         11  the City Council, but certainly an old friend, Ms.

         12  Quinn.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Council Member

         15  Quinn.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: First, I just

         17  want to say that in the past, prior to joining the

         18  Council, I worked with your office with your

         19  predecessor Katie Lapp and with Fred Patrick, and I

         20  have had, although we didn't always 100 percent

         21  agree, had terrific experiences working with your

         22  office and I hope that -- you know, I am sure that

         23  will continue now that I am on the Council and you

         24  are in Katie's job.

         25                 MR. FISHNER: I look forward to that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Great.

          3                 I wanted to also thank you for your

          4  comments about the way the vote was taken, certainly

          5  given the problems we have had in the past with

          6  getting the people from the Administration to come

          7  and testify, I share the concern. That you raised

          8  about how that occurred, so thank you for saying

          9  that.

         10                 I have a couple of questions. First,

         11  the class that is now 70 percent City residents, do

         12  you happen to know the gender or racial breakdown of

         13  the 70 percent that our City residents?

         14                 CHIEF MARKMAN: I don't have that now,

         15  I have it in general numbers.

         16                 The numbers of the minorities in the

         17  class that is 70 percent City resident is I believe

         18  36 percent minority members, and I am just going to

         19  say, I believe females would be about 17 percent.

         20  But again, I don't have the breakdown as far as 17

         21  percent City, non-City residents.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: In the 36

         23  percent, do you have a breakdown of how many are

         24  African-American, Latino, Asian-American?

         25                 CHIEF MARKMAN: I can get that for
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          2  you. The 36 percent represents the black Hispanics

          3  and the Asians, that would be the 36 percent of the

          4  minorities.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That would be

          6  great, and if you could get me how it relates to the

          7  residency, that would be great too.

          8                 CHIEF MARKMAN: And I must say that is

          9  a higher percentage than the agency actually

         10  represents.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I am sorry,

         12  what?

         13                 CHIEF MARKMAN: What we are seeing is

         14  that each class that comes in has a high

         15  representation of minorities, as when you compare it

         16  to the agency as a whole. So there is movement in

         17  that direction.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Fishner,

         19  you mentioned a commitment as it relates to

         20  recruitment to the Cadet Corps, is that the Cadet

         21  Corps that is part of the housing unit and not the

         22  one that was at CUNY; is that correct? Because I

         23  think the CUNY Cadet Corps has been defunded; is

         24  that correct?

         25                 MR. FISHNER: It is the Cadet Corps
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          2  that involves college students.

          3                 He can tell you the details.

          4                 CHIEF MARKMAN: When you talk about

          5  the Cadet Corps, we are actually talking about, they

          6  would have to be a City resident, number one. You

          7  have to go to college within New York City or Nassau

          8  or Westchester County. So, it is not just for the

          9  City Colleges, it can be any university or college

         10  in New York City, in Nassau or Suffolk, but you must

         11  be a City resident.

         12                 The program, as you know, was started

         13  in 1986 and we have attracted a large number of

         14  minority and actually all City residents to the

         15  agency.

         16                 Probably about two-thirds of the

         17  people that we attract to the Cadet Program are

         18  hired as police officers, whether after the four

         19  years when they graduate or they take an open

         20  competitive examination. So that is the way we are

         21  trying to do it.

         22                 As you also know, on the new funding

         23  we believe we have been funded for 600 positions for

         24  cadets for this next fiscal year, July, and then

         25  another 600 in January. So we are moving in that
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          2  direction.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: That is though

          4  different than the Corps that the Council has funded

          5  with extra money in the past. The CUNY one, the CUNY

          6  one, I could be wrong, but as I understand it, if

          7  you could let me know, I think the CUNY Cadet Corps

          8  the Council has funded has been defunded; is that

          9  not correct?

         10                 CHIEF MARKMAN: That is correct, yes.

         11                 Under that program, a large

         12  percentage of the funds were actually used to pay

         13  the funding of the professors.  Under our program,

         14  the funding totally goes to the actual student or

         15  cadet.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Given the

         17  commitment that you have all expressed and certainly

         18  the Mayor has expressed recently about recruitment

         19  and diversifying the Police Department, do you know

         20  whether there is consideration in the upcoming

         21  budget for the Mayor to support funding in addition

         22  to the 600, but funding back to the CUNY program?

         23  Because I know that had been quite successful and

         24  the university is quite interested in it and I can

         25  assume the Council would be since we had been
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          2  supportive of it.

          3                 Do you know if the Office of

          4  Management and Budget or the Mayor's Office is

          5  considering that?

          6                 MR. FISHNER: The preparation of the

          7  executive budget is now ongoing, coming to fruition,

          8  and there is very serious consideration of these

          9  options, and there will be a visible and substantial

         10  budget commitment made that you will see in the

         11  Executive Budget.

         12                 Madame Chair, if I may, because the

         13  hour is running late and I have a prior commitment

         14  and the question has been called and there has been

         15  a vote, and so the necessity I think of testimony is

         16  not quite clear, I have to go. And I want to thank

         17  you very much on behalf of Chief Markman and others

         18  for the opportunity to be here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Certainly. Mr.

         20  Fishner, before you leave, please, Karen Koslowitz,

         21  Council Member has a question.

         22                 MR. FISHNER: With no disrespect

         23  intended, I will make myself available to you for

         24  whatever amount of time you would like --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: What I am
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          2  going to say is going to take two minutes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Brief.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I just want

          5  to say that I note what you said and what you felt,

          6  but you have to understand that when we go on to

          7  bills, we have read these bills before and it is a

          8  sentiment. And I just want to say that my feeling is

          9  that for many, many years since I have been in the

         10  City Council, I have asked for more police for my

         11  precincts and have not gotten them, and this goes

         12  back since 1991. And to me it is a very frustrating

         13  thing, and I just feel that maybe this is a way that

         14  at least there will be more police in the City of

         15  New York that my community will be protected,

         16  because we are shortchanged by at least 30 cops in

         17  each of the three precincts that I represent. So

         18  that is where I am coming from.

         19                 MR. FISHNER: Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you.

         21                 Norm Siegel.

         22                 Norman Siegel, for those of you who

         23  don't know, is with the New York Civil Liberties

         24  Union.

         25                 Thank you. Norman.
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          2                 MR. SIEGEL: Thank you, Chair Cruz,

          3  members of the Committee. I would be derelict in my,

          4  not only duty but in my wit to not point out that

          5  when you gave me the opportunity to join the NYPD, I

          6  was raring to go. I have always wanted to join the

          7  NYPD and work with them a lot closer, so

          8  unfortunately it didn't happen.

          9                 The New York Civil Liberties Union

         10  supports Resolution No. 258, and urges the Committee

         11  to vote for its passage.

         12                 I was outside, you in fact did that,

         13  so I commend you for doing that. However, I would

         14  point out that in our opinion, the most important

         15  and compelling reason for a residency requirement --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Norm? Mr. Siegel, I

         17  am sorry, may I interrupt you?

         18                 MR. SIEGEL: Sure.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: And continue with

         20  the roll call vote that is very important. I am

         21  going to call on Council Member Larry Warden for his

         22  vote.

         23                 MR. SIEGEL: I will not have the same

         24  objections that the Police Department had. Please do

         25  what you have to do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: Thank you very

          3  much, Norman.

          4                 And Madame Chairwoman, if I just may

          5  take a moment to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WARDEN: For the

          8  record, I think citizens of New York need to know a

          9  few things that they might have overlooked as it

         10  relates to a residency law.

         11                 If I had the inclination and wanted

         12  to apply for a job in Nassau County as a police

         13  officer, or Suffolk County as a police officer,

         14  Westchester County as a police officer, whether it

         15  be Mount Vernon or Yonkers, you know what I would be

         16  told? You have to be a resident of those communities

         17  in order to serve.

         18                 What makes New York City different?

         19  If it is good enough for Nassau and Suffolk and

         20  Westchester and Yonkers, it should be good enough

         21  for us.

         22                 Another important component of this

         23  is the notion that we shouldn't do it because it is

         24  too hard. But we are government, and if government

         25  is going to take the premise of the path of least
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          2  resistance, then government indeed has a problem.

          3                 I think we were put here, elected

          4  here, to do the things that are hard, to take those

          5  challenges that are extremely difficult, if it makes

          6  good sense, if it makes for adequate and responsible

          7  public policy.

          8                 I think both of these resolutions do

          9  that. In fact, I would encourage the police to live

         10  here and I would pay them more money because they

         11  deserve it. I know we are not dealing with a

         12  kneejerk reaction, because every other employee of

         13  the City of New York has to live in the City. If you

         14  work for HRA, you have to live in the City. If you

         15  work for DEP or DOT or any of the other City

         16  agencies, you have to live in the City; what's the

         17  difference? NYPD is a City agency. It has been shown

         18  time after time after time if you have a policeman

         19  who is a resident of the City, during his off-duty

         20  hours he is walking the street, if he sees something

         21  he can deal with it.

         22                 How many of us see things in our

         23  communities and can't do anything about it? A

         24  resident police officer has the authority and the

         25  responsibility to react when he sees something wrong
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          2  any time of the day. For those reasons, and many,

          3  many more, Madame Chairwoman, I vote aye on both

          4  resolutions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you very

          6  much, Council Member Warden.

          7                 Council Member Stabile, please.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I would like

          9  to be put down as a prime, with Councilman Spigner's

         10  permission, on both bills, and I vote yes on 258.

         11  The Administration made up my mind.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you,

         13  councilman. Why do we love that man? Council Member

         14  Al Stabile, thank you very much.

         15                 MR. SIEGEL: I will continue?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Please announce the

         17  vote.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         19  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         20  no abstentions, the Reso 652 and Reso 258 are

         21  adopted.

         22                 Please sign the reports.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Please continue,

         24  Mr. Siegel. And please forgive us for the

         25  interruption.
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          2                 MR. SIEGEL: There is no forgiveness,

          3  especially when the vote is eight zero, and

          4  especially with Councilman Stabile saying what he

          5  said.

          6                 I am going to violate one of my own

          7  rules.  When young lawyers come to my office I

          8  always tell them the following: That when you go and

          9  make a motion before a judge, even if you have

         10  worked all night on it, if the judge says motion

         11  granted, shut up and go home. And since you all just

         12  voted eight zero, I am tempted to say thank you and

         13  leave, but I am going to violate that rule, and I am

         14  going to be briefer than I expected.

         15                 I applaud you for doing the right

         16  thing just now in voting eight zero, however, and I

         17  don't know if this is possible, the most important

         18  compelling reason for a residency requirement is not

         19  in your resolution.

         20                 The Civil Liberties Union generally

         21  is opposed to residency requirements, because there

         22  is a fundamental right, it is called the right to

         23  travel, in allowing people in America to live

         24  wherever they want to live; however, we have two

         25  exceptions to that rule:
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          2                 The first rule is that if the

          3  residency requirement serves as a vehicle for equal

          4  employment opportunity, or affirmative action; the

          5  second exception is if you can demonstrate that the

          6  condition of residency for employment enhances the

          7  job performance, I think, number two, from the

          8  material that I have read, is not provable, but

          9  number one is.

         10                 Consequently, the most important and

         11  compelling reason for the resident requirement is

         12  increasing the number of African-American and

         13  Latinos and Asian-Americans, that gives you the

         14  legitimate government interest in a narrowly

         15  tailored manner, to withstand any constitutional

         16  challenge to a residency requirement. That language

         17  is not currently in your resolution.

         18                 Consequently, I recommend the

         19  following paragraph with the following language:

         20                 Whereas -- I would like the language

         21  so that you could withstand a constitutional

         22  challenge, if it ever comes, wherein looking at this

         23  room where they were here a little while ago, I

         24  would assume that there would be a challenge, but

         25  the language I would propose, and it is in my
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          2  written testimony, is:

          3                 Whereas, a residency requirement

          4  would make the NYPD more representative of the

          5  communities it serves, by increasing the number of

          6  African-Americans, Latinos and Asian-Americans in

          7  the eligibility pool.

          8                 A residency requirement tied to an

          9  affirmative action plan for police officers as a

         10  condition of employment, is necessary to improve

         11  police community relations and increase the

         12  effectiveness of the NYPD.

         13                 Current members of the NYPD would be

         14  exempt from this requirement. You must have that as

         15  well, because otherwise it is unfair to people who

         16  currently came in without this precondition.

         17                 Approximately 60 percent of our

         18  population is composed of people with color, 20

         19  percent African-American, 26 percent Latino, seven

         20  percent Asian. Yet, the NYPD is approximately

         21  two-thirds Caucasian.

         22                 This is partly because residents of

         23  Nassau, Suffolk, Putnam, Westchester and Rockland

         24  are eligible to be members of the NYPD.

         25  Parenthetically you are absolutely correct and on
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          2  target. When someone from New York City wants to

          3  apply in Nassau, for example, or Suffolk to be a

          4  police officer, they can't. So that old saying

          5  what's good for the goose is good for the gander,

          6  that cliche applies here as well.

          7                 A residency requirement would make

          8  the NYPD more representative of the communities it

          9  serves. A more representative police force, in our

         10  opinion, would likely have fewer problems

         11  communicating with the people they serve.

         12                 A residency requirement would have

         13  the additional benefit of improving the racial

         14  diversity in the City's middle income neighborhood;

         15  how does that happen?

         16                 A residency requirement might have

         17  the added benefit of stemming white flight from the

         18  City. Additionally, it would encourage young white

         19  men and women seeking careers in law enforcement to

         20  move to the City.

         21                 Moreover, living in the City police

         22  officers would have a personal stake in safe, stable

         23  neighborhoods.

         24                 We recognize that a residency law

         25  must approved by the New York State Legislature and
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          2  that might not be possible.

          3                 I want to commend in particular

          4  Councilman Spigner for leading this fight for a

          5  quarter of a century.

          6                 Archie, keep going. It is the right

          7  thing to do, and I agree with you, we will overcome.

          8                 We believe a campaign for residency

          9  law would not only be the right thing to do, but

         10  would also gain the City Council and the NYPD

         11  enormous goodwill throughout the City.

         12                 As some of you know, I have been

         13  traveling the City prior to the Diallo incident,

         14  going to your community boards. I personally have

         15  attended, as of Thursday when I was at Community

         16  Board 7, Ms. Cruz' area, which was a very good

         17  meeting, in fact all of them have been very good,

         18  there is enormous goodwill and sentiment in the

         19  community boards that I have been to, 14 of them,

         20  for people to recognize that we have a problem, to

         21  look at the problem in a balanced fashion,

         22  recognizing that there are a lot of good police

         23  officers, that we have some problems, and that the

         24  moment is here for us to come together and bring

         25  about the fundamental change.
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          2                 Three decades ago the Kerner

          3  Commission reported, and I quote, "In nearly every

          4  city it surveyed, the Commission heard complaints of

          5  harassment, of social street gatherings, and the

          6  stopping of blacks on foot or in cars without

          7  obvious basis. These, together with contemptuous and

          8  degrading abuse, had great impact in the ghetto."

          9  That is what they used to call the neighborhoods.

         10  "Some conduct breaking up of street groups,

         11  indiscriminatory stops and searches is frequently

         12  directed at youth, creating special tensions in

         13  areas where youth spend much of their time on the

         14  street."

         15                 These words 30 years ago, in the

         16  Kerner Commission, describe unfortunately the

         17  reality of some of the neighborhoods in New York

         18  City today - with danger, bitterness and

         19  resignation, law abiding people bear witness to the

         20  unbridled aggressiveness of some police officers.

         21                 Many residents feel that police

         22  misconduct in the form of excessive force, abuse of

         23  authority, discourtesy, racial, ethnic and

         24  homophobic slurs are all too commonplace. It will

         25  continue as long as two-thirds of the NYPD's
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          2  officers are Caucasian in a city where people of

          3  color comprise almost 60 percent of the population.

          4                 It will continue as long as only 26

          5  of the 449 captains in the NYPD are people of color.

          6  Twenty-six out of 449? This is 1999, it is not 1899.

          7  It will continue as long as 47 percent of the NYPD

          8  police officer do not live in the City.

          9                 While the nation's eyes are focused

         10  on the situation here today and I believe the eyes

         11  are going to be focused even more so in the weeks to

         12  come. Next Thursday we are going to have 50,000

         13  people marching over the bridge for a rally in the

         14  City of New York.

         15                 We need to make sure that while

         16  people are watching us, that public relation

         17  schemes, public relation schemes do not blur that

         18  focus before the problem can be carefully

         19  scrutinized and real solutions can be implemented.

         20                 I submit what I heard in part, just

         21  before by the presentation of the Administration, is

         22  merely a public relations scheme.

         23                 The death of Mr. Diallo and the

         24  consequential mass mobilization organized in protest

         25  have resulted in a unique historical moment for
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          2  people of goodwill in this City to come together

          3  across racial lines to create a lasting civil rights

          4  movement in our town, New York City, not Jackson,

          5  Mississippi, not Birmingham, Alabama, but New York

          6  City to assure justice and equality for all New

          7  Yorkers.

          8                 We need to seize this moment in order

          9  to achieve institutional and systemic change within

         10  the NYPD. We have come too too far to now stop. We

         11  need to create a residency requirement, tie to an

         12  affirmative action plan for police officers to

         13  include police community relations and to increase

         14  the effectiveness of the NYPD.

         15                 My vision is that you and us, we and

         16  you, together link on and march up to Albany, and

         17  that we together go through those halls, just as we

         18  do it to you, you need to do it to them, and we need

         19  to be with you in those rooms talking to the State

         20  legislators, most particularly the state senate. I

         21  talked to people from Silva's office last week, they

         22  are cautiously optimistic that they are going to be

         23  able to get a bill through, which has the language

         24  about affirmative action, through the assembly. So,

         25  the question is can we do it in the senate?
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          2                 First, hypothetically, let's assume

          3  for the moment you are not wasting your time. Number

          4  one, even hypothetically, Councilman, if it didn't

          5  work in '99 or 2000, you are not wasting your time

          6  because people are looking for leadership.

          7                 If you and I are marching together on

          8  an issue, and we have got Spigner and others here,

          9  that is a first. That is not wasting our time. What

         10  people are looking for is balanced leadership,

         11  thoughtfulness and commitment to principle.

         12                 You know, with due respect, when

         13  Senator Hevesi is talking and he is talking about

         14  this bill, and then he backtracks and he says,

         15  however, I am willing to do other stuff - I think

         16  this is the right thing to do. Mr. Spigner is right.

         17                 We should stick on principle, because

         18  even if we lose on principle, people recognize that

         19  we try and we thought it was the right thing, and

         20  New Yorkers, I have found they want results, but

         21  they are willing to take people who are committed to

         22  principle and will stay the course, even if they

         23  don't get the results one night, because there is

         24  the sun coming up tomorrow, there is another fight

         25  tomorrow.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So fight the

          3  good fight, in other words?

          4                 MR. SIEGEL: You bet. And I will fight

          5  it with you, and I have been looking for the day I

          6  could come and fight it with you because you are a

          7  good warrior, all right? And the fact that we have

          8  differences shouldn't allow those stereotypes to

          9  take place. We need to find common ground. The fact

         10  that you just switched your vote and it was eight

         11  zip, I made a prediction before here based on

         12  stereotype, because I do stereotyping too, I didn't

         13  predict it would be eight zip. In the context of

         14  that, that is a ray of hope.

         15                 And, second, I don't think it is a

         16  waste of your time, because I think we are going to

         17  win it. Let me give you an example. We have got

         18  25,000 members in the Civil Liberties Union. We are

         19  statewide. Once the City Council goes on record

         20  supporting this, I write a letter to every one of my

         21  members in every county around the state, I get the

         22  NAA, I get the Puerto Rican Legal Defense Fund, I

         23  get the Asian-American Legal Defense Fund. They do

         24  the same thing. We go to the union and we get them

         25  to do the same thing. That is what organizing is
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          2  about.

          3                 And second, fighting together, as I

          4  have learned in the Civil Rights Movement, brings

          5  people together in strange alliances, and when you

          6  fight together the good fight, do you know what? The

          7  stereotypes decrease, new bonds and new alliances

          8  are formed that last forever, and that is what this

          9  City needs probably more than anything today.

         10                 The particular issues are crucial.

         11  Don't get me wrong, I fight day and night for these

         12  issues and wouldn't give it up for a second, but

         13  also what is important is the overview, the

         14  atmosphere, the need for leadership. We need heroes

         15  and heroines. I need them and you need them. So,

         16  when you vote eight zip as opposed to seven one or

         17  six two maybe, or five three even, you walk away and

         18  you say it can be done. It can be done.

         19                 And we can do it together. You just

         20  look at this right here. This is the real New York.

         21  And the reason it is the real New York is because it

         22  is diversified. We are missing an Asian here, but

         23  other than that it is as close as it can be.

         24                 When we go down to one of the sides

         25  of this building, it ain't as mixed as it is here,
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          2  and we are sophisticated. We understand that death

          3  doesn't happen accidentally. We understand when it

          4  is all white or almost all white, it ain't Bull

          5  Conna, it ain't George Wallace, it ain't Birmingham,

          6  but it is more subtle, it is more sophisticated. And

          7  you don't need Bull Conna, or George Wallace in

          8  1999. When you attack people who engage in Ghandi

          9  and King tactics as being silly, when you attack

         10  people who act unconscious by saying they are doing

         11  it for publicity, you become the 1999 prototype as

         12  the opponent in opposition to civil rights and the

         13  American dream of equality and justice for all. And

         14  when that happens it is everyone's fight.

         15                 And so together, from here to Warren

         16  and the folks in the middle, you can become the

         17  symbol for us to follow in making this happen and

         18  other things that will come after that.

         19                 So, I thank you very, very much. You

         20  have made my day today by doing it eight zip. Cruz,

         21  Spigner, all of you, keep it up. Never think that it

         22  was a waste of your time. We are going to win this

         23  issue, I guarantee you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you so very

         25  much, Norm.
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          2                 I believe before you go, please,

          3  Council Member Quinn has a comment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

          5                 MR. SIEGEL: One other thing. Do you

          6  want to march with us next Thursday? Give it some

          7  thought. I will thank you. I will look forward to do

          8  that with you. Thursday, the 15th, 4:00. It is only

          9  over the Brooklyn Bridge. Good march.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Council Member,

         11  if you want, also people are meeting at five at the

         12  federal plaza, so it is all about options. So,

         13  Brooklyn, absolutely, for the cameras.

         14                 Two things, Norman. One, I want to

         15  thank you for referencing affirmative action a

         16  number of times, and I think that is really

         17  important to keep in the dialogue around residency,

         18  both throughout the Council and throughout the City.

         19                 Going back to your comment about PR

         20  stunts, et cetera, which you and I have participated

         21  in magically.

         22                 MR. SIEGEL: Yes, we were used.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Yes.

         24                 The Mayor, as we all know, has

         25  announced a new recruitment effort. If I was the
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          2  Mayor and I wanted to recruit effectively, I would

          3  reach out to people who are involved in the

          4  communities that I am going to recruit in, et

          5  cetera, and I would reach out to people who have

          6  done work and given that matter thought.

          7                 So, I want to ask if anyone from the

          8  Administration has reached out to you or the Civil

          9  Liberties Union, and others on your staff, to ask

         10  for advice or help on how to craft a more successful

         11  and effective recruitment program.

         12                 MR. SIEGEL: The answer tragically is

         13  no.

         14                 I will go further, there is other

         15  people in the civil rights community who also should

         16  be called, involved and they haven't.

         17                 I will even go further. Within the

         18  NYPD, as we have learned, there are groups like the

         19  Guardians, the Latino Officers Association, 100

         20  Blacks In Law Enforcement Who Care, and other groups

         21  as well dealing with Asian officers, gay and lesbian

         22  officers, and I would bet a good old New York

         23  chocolate eggcream, and the reason why I always like

         24  chocolate eggcream is because it is black and white

         25  together, but in the context of that, I would bet
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          2  anything that they weren't contacted or asked for

          3  help.

          4                 And it is sad because there are so

          5  many people in this City who would like to

          6  participate and would like to help ameliorate this

          7  problem, and I say ameliorate as opposed to

          8  eliminate because we are never going to eliminate it

          9  all but we can ameliorate it. And this

         10  Administration, for whatever reason, just does not

         11  reach out.

         12                 If you come and you criticize their

         13  presentation, you are either on some list that they

         14  won't talk to you or they criticize you as being

         15  silly or engaging in an attempt to be on TV, which

         16  actually they are projecting more than anything.

         17                 So, I think the answer, Chris, is

         18  unfortunately no, you probably knew that. You gave

         19  me the softball, I am hitting it back, and I am

         20  saying to people here, if they were serious about

         21  trying to confront this issue and overcome it, you

         22  could do it relatively quickly.

         23                 And it is sad that they don't do

         24  that, but even after saying, it is still the

         25  institution of the Mayor of the City of New York and
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          2  most of us, even though a few of us now feel that we

          3  were betrayed by the task force that we were asked

          4  to be on and we were given assurances that we had

          5  the right to look at a broad mandate, if the phone

          6  call came again to help, we would help because you

          7  have no other option when you are a civil rights

          8  advocate, but to continue to have faith in the

          9  opponents. It is not a two way street, but we have

         10  no other options and we would continue to do it. But

         11  as I have said to this group before, and Chris knows

         12  it well, if there was another task force and they

         13  asked me to be on it, I would disrespectfully say

         14  no.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         16                 I just wanted to say too, you

         17  mentioned the Gay Officers Action League, I know

         18  they have not been reached out to, and I share your

         19  sentiment if I was asked to be on a task force in

         20  this Administration I wouldn't. But also I agree, if

         21  they asked for my help in recruiting in the lesbian

         22  and gay or west side, I would help. In fact, at the

         23  hearing on the street crimes unit I spoke to

         24  Commissioner Mouve, Marilyn Mouve, and said that I

         25  wanted to meet with them to hear what they were
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          2  going to be doing in the lesbian and gay community

          3  to give ideas of how it could be more effective. I

          4  thought I must say that was a gesture on my part and

          5  --

          6                 MR. SIEGEL: You probably have never

          7  got a call?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Never. Have not

          9  been called.

         10                 So, I just want to say, Mr. Fishner

         11  said we were wasting our time, though some could say

         12  spending $10 million without planning it or talking

         13  to the people who worked on the issue could be

         14  wasting one's time, as well.

         15                 MR. SIEGEL: Well, Fishner's comment

         16  of you are wasting your time, as we learned in

         17  Brooklyn where I grew up, it is just sour grapes. It

         18  really reflects their attitude, their disdain

         19  towards the democratic process and towards the City

         20  Council.

         21                 And my comment to you is, he is

         22  wasting his time. You are not wasting your time.

         23  Don't be deterred by that kind of myopic, cynical,

         24  manipulative language. Is that what she has done for

         25  25 years? Do the right thing, stay the course and
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          2  right now everyone in this room who is up there, I

          3  am talking to the converted, because all of you have

          4  done exactly that. Continue to do that. We will reap

          5  what we sow, and sowing, and putting these seeds in

          6  right now in the ground, so that some day a

          7  residency to affirmative action will bloom in New

          8  York City is what we are all about, and I think it

          9  is going to happen, and we can pull together.

         10                 Because there is another thing, we in

         11  seven offices around the state, in the Civil

         12  Liberties Union, we are not a New York City

         13  operation, we are statewide. This problem is in

         14  Buffalo, it is in Rochester, Syracuse, it is Albany.

         15  We can put together, if they force us to, an

         16  incredible impressive statewide Civil Rights

         17  Coalition that is long overdue as well.

         18                 So, I learned a long time ago when I

         19  was in the south, participating in the historical

         20  civil rights movement, is that you take every

         21  opportunity, you take everything that looks like a

         22  negative and cleverly you turn it around to a

         23  positive.

         24                 We can do it. We will do it.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: As always, thank

          3  you, Norm. Thank you so much.

          4                 We would like to hear from the PBA at

          5  this point.

          6                 Let me have Mr. Thomas Walsh. Mr.

          7  Gregory Longworth and Bruce Robertson, from the PBA.

          8  We are going to hear everyone's testimony, so please

          9  bear with us.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. ROBERTSON: I would like to read

         12  my statement into the record. Good afternoon, Madame

         13  Chair, those Council members who are left and who

         14  were nice enough to stay here and listen to our part

         15  of it. I just would like to comment, I would like to

         16  read the statement into the record, but I mean I

         17  don't know what impact it will have, because

         18  obviously the Committee has already prejudged the

         19  issue and the voting is over.

         20                 However, the New York City

         21  Patrolmen's Benevolent Association has been asked to

         22  comment on City Council Resolutions No. 652 and 258.

         23                 As the City Council Resolution 652,

         24  which provides income tax credits, real estate tax

         25  credits and public college tuition grants to NYPD
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          2  recruits who are City residents, the PBA supports

          3  this and just about any proposal which provides

          4  economic advantages to its members, who reside in

          5  the five boroughs.

          6                 However, the PBA opposes City Council

          7  Resolution Number 258, amending the public officer's

          8  law to require NYPD police officers to reside within

          9  the City of New York.

         10                 Historically, since 1962, when the

         11  residency rule was repealed, every time a tragedy or

         12  scandal touches the New York City Police Department,

         13  it has become a kneejerk reaction to roll out the

         14  residency requirements.

         15                 Residency is a complex issue. As you

         16  know, more than half of New York City police

         17  officers are City residents but there are no

         18  empirical data to support the concept that a

         19  residency requirement improves the quality of

         20  policing.

         21                 National law enforcement experts say

         22  there is no evidence that making police officers

         23  live where they work makes any difference in the way

         24  the public is served by their Police Department.

         25                 Furthermore, policing experts say the
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          2  trend toward requiring officers to live where they

          3  work, or giving them financial incentives to do so,

          4  is more about image than substance.

          5                 Accordingly, those who propose the

          6  spurious theory that police officers who live in the

          7  City they police provide better service and are more

          8  dedicated are just plain wrong.

          9                 How do you measure the quality of

         10  service to the public? If you measure it by the

         11  number of civilian complaints filed against

         12  officers, there is evidence that complaints are no

         13  more likely to be filed against officers who live a

         14  few miles north or east of the New York City border

         15  than they are against cops whose bedrooms are within

         16  the City limits.

         17                 In fact, CCRB records show that

         18  through the years of 1993, '94 and '95 and '96, the

         19  majority of police officers receiving civilian

         20  complaints were City residents.

         21                 Two of the four police officers

         22  involved in the recent terrible Diallo tragedy were

         23  also City residents.

         24                 If you measure the quality of police

         25  service and how many have made the supreme sacrifice
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          2  for New Yorkers, you get a revealing story. Of the

          3  17 cops who laid down their lives for us over the

          4  past six years, more than half were nonresidents.

          5                 Does that grim statistic sound like

          6  officers who live in the suburbs, are less dedicated

          7  and more reluctant to put themselves in harm's way

          8  as part of their job? I don't think so.

          9                 In the final analysis to measure a

         10  police officer's ability to perform even partly by

         11  the cop's home address is to trivialize the work

         12  police officers do and the sacrifices they make for

         13  us every day.

         14                 Here is another set of facts to

         15  consider. The recent analysis of statistics compiled

         16  by the United States Justice Department's Office of

         17  Law Enforcement, Management and Administration,

         18  showed that of the nation's ten safer cities, only

         19  two had residency requirements. Of the ten most

         20  dangerous cities, seven had residency requirements.

         21                 New York City must attract and retain

         22  the highest caliber of professional police officers.

         23  It is difficult enough for the City to compete in

         24  the marketplace for top quality candidates, while

         25  neighboring communities offer substantially higher

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  salaries and benefits and better working conditions.

          3                 And by the way, New York City Police

          4  Officers that live outside the City do not get the

          5  usual break that other commuters get. They pay the

          6  City an amount equal to the New York City residents

          7  tax.

          8                 Residency requirements substantially

          9  limit the talent pool that recruiters may want to

         10  draw from. Other large municipalities, such as Las

         11  Vegas and Baltimore are recruiting and administering

         12  their entrance examination right here in New York

         13  City at John Jay College of Criminal Justice,

         14  thereby stealing some of our best inter-City talent

         15  by offering more attractive salaries and greener

         16  pastures.

         17                 Many college-educated candidates for

         18  policing will look elsewhere because they simply do

         19  not want to be locked into an environment that will

         20  prevent them from getting their share in what is for

         21  many the American dream, that house in the suburbs

         22  with the picket fence and a better education for

         23  their children.

         24                 Residency requirements may breed

         25  corruption and an inability to enforce laws
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          2  adequately.

          3                 Police officers in the NYPD are not

          4  allowed to reside in the precise area where they

          5  work for obvious reasons, such as retaliation

          6  against their families by people they have locked

          7  up.

          8                 Police officers do not want to

          9  socialize or interact while off-duty with felons

         10  that they have previously arrested, nor do they want

         11  their families harassed or threatened while they are

         12  off duty.

         13                 The PBA is not opposed to measures

         14  designed to encourage of City residents, including

         15  awarding of extra points on entrance exams, however,

         16  on the principle that all should have equal

         17  opportunities for advancement, the PBA is opposed to

         18  giving extra points for residency on promotional

         19  exams.

         20                 Any attempt to establish residency

         21  requirements for police officers, firefighters,

         22  teachers, corrections officers or sanitation workers

         23  seems to be merely feel-good legislation that

         24  panders to the needs of local politicians. Good

         25  character, dedication and advanced education are
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          2  some of the qualities that should be sought when

          3  seeking a better police officer.

          4                 The talent pool that recruiters

          5  currently draw from is diminished due to salary

          6  inadequacies compared to surrounding jurisdictions.

          7                 Let us not decrease our resources by

          8  adding further restrictions on talented individuals

          9  who may want to dedicate their lives to building and

         10  keeping a better, safer New York City.

         11                 Having read that into the record, I

         12  thank the Council, but I would also like to address

         13  the Council in the manner that it treated the

         14  members of these unions that came here today because

         15  we were invited here to give an opinion on an issue

         16  that concerns us a lot. We came here to give our

         17  opinion, but you took a vote right in front of us

         18  before we even got a chance to talk, and I submit to

         19  this Council that you people could use a lesson in

         20  CPR, because you certainly showed us no courtesy, no

         21  kind of professionalism or no respect while we

         22  appeared here before this Council.

         23                 Having said that, I will be open to

         24  any questions that anybody may have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you. Having
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          2  said that, I just want you to know that your

          3  comments have been duly noted.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 Next speaker. Do we have a copy of

          6  your statement, sir?

          7                 MR. ROBERTSON: I submitted 35 copies.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay. And Council

          9  Member Spigner has a question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, I have a

         11  question, Mr. Robertson.

         12                 As it relates to the pool, and I

         13  agree that we need to pay good salaries. I don't

         14  think that a municipality can pay more than it can

         15  afford to pay. Do you know what I am saying?

         16                 Nassau County is having the worst

         17  time imaginable with its tax base. I don't know

         18  where you live, but I read Newsday --

         19                 MR. ROBERTSON: Just for the record, I

         20  live in New York City. I live three blocks from the

         21  high school I went to. I have never lived outside of

         22  New York City in my life.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Good, I am

         24  glad.

         25                 I read Newsday, and in Newsday the
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          2  editorial and news articles are full of stories

          3  relating to the difficulty that Nassau is having

          4  with the tax base. And I am going to tell you,

          5  someone who has some knowledge, a little knowledge,

          6  and it shows you a little knowledge can be very

          7  dangerous, but there is a kind of interrelationship

          8  in Nassau County that I don't think is healthy.

          9  Whether we have school principals who -- there was a

         10  Boces director, whatever Boces is, $150,000 a year.

         11  I mean, we can't afford that. We have got other

         12  needs.

         13                 We, as legislators, and as

         14  administrators, we have to try to balance the equity

         15  to pay workers what they are entitled to, to

         16  maintain the competitive status, and to meet other

         17  needs as well, and that is how we -- and I must tell

         18  you, the unions in New York City are strong, they

         19  have strong influence with the Council, they have

         20  strong influence with the Mayor, maybe they didn't

         21  always get what they want, but I will tell you, you

         22  are listened to.

         23                 MR. ROBERTSON: I don't think we

         24  influence this Mayor.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You certainly

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  influence this Council. You are listened to.

          3                 Every time we put out a test

          4  announcement, we have people coming from all over

          5  the country to take the test. There are no shortage

          6  of applicants, whether it is a sanitation job --

          7  there is a shortage for teachers now, you can't get

          8  teachers. But the last time we took the test for --

          9  gave the test for police officers, all sanitation

         10  workers, I think there was a rather healthy pool.

         11  Whether they stay or not --

         12                 MR. ROBERTSON: I think if I could

         13  just direct you on that, because I also teach in

         14  John Jay College, I am adjunct professor and

         15  lecturer in the institution.

         16                 In my class last semester, when they

         17  were giving the last entrance exam to the Police

         18  Department, they not only mailed applications to

         19  every student in the college, they came to my

         20  classroom three times to address to get more people

         21  to come and take the test. They had a problem

         22  getting people to take the test for the New York

         23  City Police Department, and part of the problem is

         24  -- as we speak here right now at this minute, the

         25  Las Vegas Police Department is in John Jay College
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          2  giving its entrance exams. Two weeks from now the

          3  City of Baltimore is coming in and giving its

          4  entrance exams, stealing this talent pool away from

          5  us and a lot of it has to do with the money. Because

          6  I teach a classroom that is full of minorities, 90

          7  percent minority, and I will have a lot of them say

          8  to me, when I get my degree I am going to to look

          9  someplace down around Wall Street. I don't want to

         10  put on a bulletproof vest and strap on a 9

         11  millimeter weapon and go out there with a pair of

         12  handcuffs. And when you look at the tools of the

         13  trade it tells you something about the job, or the

         14  assignment that you are going into.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: That's right.

         16                 MR. ROBERTSON: They say why should I

         17  do that, Professor Robertson? Why should I do that?

         18  Why should I want to do that for a starting salary

         19  of $29,000 a year.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, we have

         21  got the same things with teachers saying why should

         22  I get a degree and then teach for 27 --

         23                 MR. ROBERTSON: Would you require

         24  teachers to live in the City of New York?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well we need
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          2  to, believe me.

          3                 MR. ROBERTSON: We haven't gotten to

          4  that though.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Believe me,

          6  we need to. I am not opposed to requiring all,

          7  Sanitation, Correction, whoever is exempt, in my

          8  opinion -- you live in New York City, we need a

          9  middle class to New York City.

         10                 Do you know what a middle class is?

         11  Guys who can contribute, people who can be

         12  contributors who can be scoutmasters, who can be

         13  choir directors, who can be civic leaders, who can

         14  be PTA presidents, who can serve on community

         15  boards. We need people who have that economic status

         16  and economic dependability of a regular check of

         17  civil service and the PBA and the UFT and the CSA

         18  and the teamsters provide for 200,000 workers, and

         19  that is what I am talking about. That is the basis

         20  of New York City's middle class. The Wall Street can

         21  move in, can move to India, you know, the

         22  manufacturing -- but the jobs are here - picking up

         23  the garbage in New York City, patrolling our

         24  streets, teaching in our schools, and that is why I

         25  am committed to residency, not only for the cops but
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          2  for all City employees as well.

          3                 MR. ROBERTSON: I would submit to you,

          4  even though I have lived in New York City all of my

          5  life, I have never thought at one time or another

          6  that that made me any kind of a better police

          7  officer.

          8                 I will tell you what these hearings

          9  are really all about and what is going on in New

         10  York City, and I hate to see race get in the way

         11  because I think there is a lot of race bating going

         12  on out there today, I understand there are some

         13  commercials that came out, I haven't seen them yet,

         14  that are really terrible. It just seems that there

         15  is a certain element of people out here who want to

         16  see some kind of racial disturbance in New York and

         17  want to see some kind of a riot.

         18                 About six years ago, the New York

         19  City Police Department switched gears. We used to do

         20  what was called reactive policing. We used to ride

         21  around in patrol cars and when we got called, we

         22  came. If we spotted something, we went. We were some

         23  of the greatest report takers in the world.

         24                 We switched over to what is known as

         25  proactive policing and now gone a little bit further
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          2  than that, they pushed the envelope. We do what is

          3  called a very aggressive style of policing.  Does it

          4  work? Yes, it works. But there is a swap off here.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Of course

          6  there is.

          7                 MR. ROBERTSON: There is a swap off

          8  here, because I believe it was President Grant that

          9  said the best will is the will of the people.

         10                 I think what we have to do here is

         11  find out what the will of the people is, and it lies

         12  somewhere in the middle, because I do not want to go

         13  back to the Dinkins, Koch days of when -- I worked

         14  on patrol in the theater district, I did Times

         15  Square, and during those days we were telling

         16  people, if you are going to go to the theater, don't

         17  wear your jewelry, don't wear your jewelry on the

         18  outside, don't wear your good clothing, and I am

         19  sure you will remember that, because of all of the

         20  street gangs, the chain snatchers and everything

         21  that you have.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I remember it

         23  quite well.

         24                 MR. ROBERTSON: I don't want to go

         25  back there, but I also, let me submit to this panel,
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          2  I don't want to go to a police state either. I don't

          3  want to see people being taken out of a car. But

          4  here is what has happened here. We drove the crime

          5  rate down, there is no doubt about it. Somebody

          6  sitting in the puzzle palace didn't do it. We did

          7  it. We went out there in the street and we did it.

          8                 Now that that crime rate is down,

          9  what happens -- and let me say, I don't speak for

         10  Rudy Giuliani, I don't speak for the Mayor, I don't

         11  speak for the Police Commissioner, I speak for

         12  26,700 white shield police officers that work out

         13  there on the street. Now that we have driven those

         14  serious crimes down, they have to find more for us

         15  to do. So, what happens now is, now we become the

         16  people who were taking your daughter's bicycle away

         17  because she doesn't have a bell on it, and we are

         18  summonsing you to death. The amount of people that

         19  are out there on patrol riding around in radio cares

         20  is the same amount that were out there in 1990,

         21  everybody else is in civilian clothes, running

         22  around in specialized units, giving out C summonses

         23  to get revenues for the City.

         24                 The more work we do, the

         25  Administration keeps raising the bar on numbers of
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          2  summonses, and numbers of arrests and what have you.

          3  They will tell you there are no quotas in the Police

          4  Department, that the Police Department doesn't have

          5  any quotas, and it's a lie.

          6                 I am on the Police Department 34

          7  years and I am telling you it's a lie, and anybody

          8  that has been on this job for over a year that

          9  doesn't know it, they shouldn't pursue an

         10  investigative career, because I am telling you those

         11  quotas exist.

         12                 The PBA and the union, we don't hire,

         13  we don't train and we don't assign. We are like the

         14  kids that went to Vietnam in my era. We are like the

         15  soldiers that went over there and were told to do

         16  it. And we get no courtesy, we get no

         17  professionalism and we get no respect in our station

         18  houses. We are treated like dogs that are sent there

         19  to do the work.

         20                 I mean, I would much rather see new

         21  recruits that come out of the police academy, I

         22  would rather see them go to communities, meet people

         23  like you who represent the people, get taken by the

         24  hand, go down, meet the local pastors, meet the

         25  priest if you have, the rabbi, meet the butcher, the
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          2  candlestick maker, meet all of the residents and

          3  find out who the long term people are in that

          4  community.

          5                 But that is not happening, no. They

          6  come out and they assign them to road blocks to stop

          7  people and hammer them with summonses. And that is

          8  our problem. That is the problem that we have.

          9                 And as far as going into other things

         10  and I testified before this Council before in

         11  relation to CCRBs, I will submit to you that their

         12  system is inadequate, it certainly is. There is no

         13  educational component built into the discipline in

         14  the New York City Police Department. It punishes for

         15  the sake of punishment.

         16                 And I will also submit to you, I will

         17  bet you, I will make a wager with you that the New

         18  York City police officer is the most punished and

         19  the most disciplined worker probably in the free

         20  world, if you look at it in the number of hours and

         21  dollars that we give back.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, Mr.

         23  Robertson, you have certainly made your --

         24                 MR. ROBERTSON: Join the group.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You made your
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          2  case clear this afternoon. I just think where we can

          3  work together we should and my bill and my view of

          4  residency is prospective.

          5                 MR. ROBERTSON: I realize that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: It is

          7  prospective. I don't want to punish the guy who is

          8  already on the job, if he took it yesterday, I am

          9  talking prospectively. Whatever else flows from that

         10  I am open for discussion, and so I think we look for

         11  really what good for the City of New York and you as

         12  a resident, you have to know that our best shot at

         13  sustaining and building a middle class with the

         14  230,000 civil servant good paying union jobs that we

         15  control and not trying to tract and maintain a

         16  printing industry or some hi-tech or silicon or this

         17  and that, it's those jobs where the high school

         18  grads and guys with BAs can go out and make a living

         19  and support their family and be taxpayers.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MR. ROBERTSON: I absolutely agree

         22  with you, and I would just like to site one more

         23  instance, because I have used it and I have used it

         24  in my classroom where residency laws can be unfair.

         25  They can create sort of what you might want to call
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          2  ghetto syndrome. If you grew up in Washington

          3  Heights and you grew up in bad neighborhoods, it is

          4  going to guarantee that your children are going to

          5  grow up there.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You can move

          7  to Staten Island. You can move to Riverdale.

          8                 MR. ROBERTSON: You can buy a house in

          9  Riverdale?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You can move

         11  to St. Albans. You can buy a house in St. Albans. I

         12  live in St. Albans, you can buy a house in St.

         13  Albans.

         14                 MR. ROBERTSON: Well, let me give you

         15  an example. Let me give you an example of a female,

         16  single parent.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I love St.

         18  Albans.

         19                 MR. ROBERTSON: Let me give you an

         20  example of a female single parent, minority. A

         21  female single parent. She grows up, she gets her

         22  college credits, she takes her entrance exam, she

         23  goes into the Police Department. She is raising her

         24  child, she is a single parent, a minority, pick

         25  whichever one you want. Works in Midtown North
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          2  Precinct. Meets and falls in love with somebody and

          3  happens to be a lieutenant, they fall in love with

          4  each other, he says come with me --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Quit the job.

          6                 MR. ROBERTSON: You come with me --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Go with him.

          8  Good luck. Have a good life.

          9                 MR. ROBERTSON: You come with me. He

         10  says I have a wonderful house in the suburbs where

         11  your daughter will be able to go to a better school.

         12  She has to give up her career.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Make a party.

         14  We will make a party for her.

         15                 MR. ROBERTSON: And it is not fair to

         16  her and it is not fair to women.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: But it is

         18  fair to the City.

         19                 MR. ROBERTSON: I don't think so,

         20  because she is a part of the City, believe it or

         21  not. We are a part of this City.

         22                 MR. SMITH: But she can be a police

         23  officer where she goes, to the other jurisdiction.

         24                 MR. ROBERTSON: Maybe she doesn't want

         25  to.
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          2                 MR. SMITH: But she has that option.

          3  She can do that.

          4                 MR. ROBERTSON: She might have the

          5  option. Maybe they have residency rules.

          6                 MR. SMITH: Yes, you have to live in

          7  that area.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Let's not all join

          9  in. Let's go to professionalism, courtesy and

         10  respect. One at a time.

         11                 MR. ROBERTSON: Let me just finish off

         12  by saying our definition of CPR in our organization,

         13  because I do think with this new program that came

         14  out, there is a lot of window dressing there, and I

         15  don't know how much of it is going to be

         16  substantive. But I will say that our biggest thrust

         17  into CPR, we use CPR as being compensatory pay

         18  raise. That is what we would like to see. We would

         19  like to see a compensatory pay raise for our police

         20  officers. So that we don't have to have our police

         21  officers that live in Nassau County and Suffolk

         22  County are the ones you can identify them, because

         23  their next door neighbors are Nassau County and

         24  Suffolk County police, you can tell which ones are

         25  our guys and girls because of the house that needs
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          2  all the work done on it.

          3                 I will yield to Tommy. I think you

          4  wanted to say something.

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We are going to do

          7  CRP on both sides of the table here, so let's finish

          8  the panel and then we will address questions, okay?

          9                 MR. WALSH: I would be remiss, and,

         10  again, this is my first time testifying before you,

         11  the City Council, I have one question: Is what took

         12  place today normally what happens? I mean, do you

         13  take a vote before you have testimony? I don't

         14  understand that. I am not an expert on parliamentary

         15  --

         16                 MR. SMITH: Let me answer that

         17  question for you.

         18                 MR. WALSH: I am not finished. I am

         19  not finished.

         20                 I know that the Chairlady came and

         21  introduced the children that were upstairs, I would

         22  hate to have them think that is the way business is

         23  done. I mean, making a vote before testimony is out?

         24  I am terribly insulted, being that this is my first

         25  time testifying here before you, that before the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  testimony even is to you, a vote was taken. I think

          3  it is appalling. I have heard people speak of

          4  democratic processes. Please explain to my why, what

          5  how? Please. I would like to come back and get a

          6  fair --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I can very well

          8  appreciate. I want you to understand, and I don't

          9  think you were listening when we said that this is

         10  not a kneejerk reaction. This is --

         11                 MR. WALSH: What wasn't? The vote

         12  wasn't kneejerk?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: No, no, no. The

         14  residency. This is something that has been debated

         15  since 1978. It has been a resolution that has been

         16  presented and talked about. The fact that, yes, Mr.

         17  Diallo --

         18                 MR. WALSH: I am not talking about

         19  that.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: You are talking

         21  about the vote. So I am telling you that the

         22  information regarding police residency is one that

         23  has been discussed in this Council since 1978. So

         24  you are talking about over a quarter of a century;

         25  is that correct, Mr. Spigner?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Twenty-three

          3  years, 25 years.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Give or take, okay,

          5  you are talking about some time.

          6                 So, I am sorry that you felt that it

          7  was something that --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: It's your

          9  first time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, it is his

         11  first time. It was not a kneejerk.

         12                 MR. WALSH: I didn't say it was.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I want you to know

         14  that I think it is important.

         15                 MR. WALSH: Has that ever happened

         16  before? And will it happen again, is my question?

         17                 MR. SMITH: The answer to your

         18  question is yes. And the reason why we did it that

         19  way is because we had a quorum of members, we had

         20  members who had to attend other meetings. We respect

         21  your opinion and we respect the testimony of the

         22  other witnesses, it is through no disrespect of

         23  ours, our body, that we did what we did. We had the

         24  Speaker of the Council who was here, and his

         25  schedule is very tight. We are very familiar with
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          2  the issues. Yes, you make a credible argument when

          3  you say that we should have sat there and listened

          4  to your testimony. We are doing that now. We are

          5  giving you the opportunity to be heard. But

          6  understand something, understand that the business

          7  of government and the business of this Committee

          8  today was, we had two resolutions on and we wanted

          9  to take a vote to get those resolutions out of

         10  Committee, the faster we do that, the quicker we do

         11  that, the better.

         12                 Now, the vote could have gone up, the

         13  vote could have gone down, but we have to conduct

         14  the business that we are charged to do.

         15                 MR. WALSH: Can I just address that?

         16  If the people who work here and are assigned here

         17  have to base their judgment on testimony and that is

         18  their responsibility --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Do you a

         20  testimony to give, or do you want to debate the

         21  rules of the Council?

         22                 MR. WALSH: No, I am not. I am making

         23  a comment, sir. I am making a comment on something I

         24  saw, I was witness to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: But this is
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          2  not a new issue.

          3                 MR. WALSH: And you haven't answered

          4  my question. Has it happened before? And will it

          5  happen again?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: But this is

          7  not a new issue. It is something that we have been

          8  dealing with. We had lots of time to think about it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You can

         10  testify now.

         11                 MR. WALSH: Yes, I made my statement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, you have. It

         13  has been duly noted. Thank you.

         14                 Do you have something you would like

         15  to add, sir?

         16                 MR. LONGWORTH: No, I don't.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: No? Okay.

         18                 MR. ROBERTSON: Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Okay. Are there any

         20  questions?

         21                 Okay, I believe Council Member Quinn

         22  was first.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         24  say one thing, and then there is a question.

         25                 Mr. Robertson, is that right? Mr.
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          2  Robertson?

          3                 MR. ROBERTSON: Robertson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You referenced

          5  the vote and CPR when you started, and the chair

          6  said that that has been noted and I know that if she

          7  says it has been noted then it has and it will be

          8  addressed, towards that end of all of us following a

          9  sense of CPR, I want you to know that I take offense

         10  at your statement that there are people of this City

         11  who want there to be a race riot. I have myself

         12  participated in protests since the Diallo incident,

         13  I will be there on Thursday. The idea that I want to

         14  inflame racial tensions in this City or I want there

         15  to be a race riot completely falls, is something I

         16  take great offense to you saying, and I believe you

         17  are making those kind of statements to the Council

         18  will not further increase our ability to all work

         19  together on this very important issue, which I know

         20  you do want to work on with us, and I know you do

         21  want to improve police community relations.

         22                 So, I would encourage you not to make

         23  statements like that again, because I found it

         24  personally offensive.

         25                 MR. ROBERTSON: Councilwoman, I am
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          2  sorry if it offended you, but I did not mention your

          3  name. But if you have a stroke of guilt there and

          4  you want to air it, by all means just let it out.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You know, that

          6  is outrageous to imply that I have a stroke of

          7  guilt. I have guilt about nothing. I am damn proud

          8  of everything I am doing on this issue, and that you

          9  would come here and imply that my expressing -- you

         10  stood up and you said we felt we were disrespectful,

         11  and that was noted, and I said you were

         12  disrespectful and if you had any manners at all you

         13  would say you noted that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me.

         15                 MR. ROBERTSON: Did I mention your

         16  name?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me.

         18                 MR. ROBERTSON: There are people in

         19  this City --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We are adults here.

         21                 First of all, and I wasn't going to

         22  go there, I was trying very much not to go there,

         23  but Mr. Robertson, I want you to know that I have

         24  been very, very ill, and just like Council Member

         25  Quinn said that she had participated in
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          2  demonstrations, I was one of the people that was

          3  arrested, a lot of legislators went down, detained

          4  an inordinate amount of time, there were some

          5  officers who were absolutely magnificent and that is

          6  why I practiced my statement by saying to those of

          7  you who have done that wonderful job, it is a tough

          8  job. I want you to also know that my husband is a

          9  retired police sergeant who served 27 years, and yes

         10  we live and continue to live in the City of New

         11  York. My personal feelings are that it makes him a

         12  very special person, and that the community would

         13  always seek him out and we knew, as we continue to

         14  know, who is dropping off the stolen cars, where are

         15  the drug spots, and you know something? So many

         16  times a lot of this goes and falls on deaf ears, and

         17  I am an elected official.

         18                 So, I am wondering about the common

         19  little guy. When I went and was arrested, as I said,

         20  there were cops that were extraordinary and others

         21  that were impossible.

         22                 I was using a cane, barely able to

         23  maneuver, there was a supervisor who wanted to put

         24  handcuffs on, handcuff me, and it wasn't until I

         25  said I assume the Police Department will take the
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          2  responsibility if I should fall, because how can you

          3  handcuff -- I mean, common sense would say how do

          4  you handcuff someone with a cane? And it wasn't

          5  until the people, Council Member Robinson, and a lot

          6  of Council members were there that said you have got

          7  to be crazy. We went. I was not, and I can guarantee

          8  you, sir. There was not press, someone said you have

          9  to send the press, I wasn't doing it for the press,

         10  I was doing it as so many people are doing it,

         11  because it is the right thing. And you have got to

         12  stand there and you have got to go home, when you

         13  say I live in the City, and you have to say to

         14  yourself, you know something? Lucy Cruz' family is

         15  proud to live in the City and serve it, we are not

         16  saying that the ones that don't live in the City

         17  don't do a great job, but there has to come a time

         18  when the people that are making their money here in

         19  the City live here in the City, all right?

         20                 And, again, it is not about

         21  disrespecting one another, and I am sorry that you

         22  have been taken -- I think the City Council is very

         23  respective of all of the unions, all of you have

         24  come here before, we have responded. I can

         25  appreciate and do understand Council Member Quinn,
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          2  how you would be feeling very disrespected, and for

          3  that I apologize.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MR. ROBERTSON: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I have a

          7  comment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Oh, Council Member

          9  Koslowitz has a comment, I am sorry.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KOSLOWITZ: I just want to

         11  start off by saying I have the greatest amount of

         12  respect for the police that protect us. I think that

         13  you said it when you were talking about better

         14  education in Nassau and Suffolk.

         15                 My children live in Suffolk County

         16  and on their block probably live four families that

         17  belong to the police force. And yes, my grandson

         18  does go to a better school than my children went to

         19  living in New York City, and that is the problem. We

         20  have to build up our middle class constituency

         21  again, and our schools have to be good. They are

         22  important for everyone in New York City, and as I

         23  said before, probably when I heard this before at

         24  one time, this bill or similar bill to this, I had

         25  reservations about it, and as I said before, we
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          2  don't have enough police in my precinct and the only

          3  way that my communities can get protected is to have

          4  New York City policemen live in New York City so

          5  that maybe if I am in trouble or my neighbor is in

          6  trouble, maybe somewhere there, there is someone

          7  walking around. And you said it before, we are short

          8  on police in our precincts and now, last night

          9  coming home they were doing a DWI check, which is

         10  important, they do TLC checks, which are also

         11  important, and they do many, many other activities

         12  that are important to the quality of life or what is

         13  happening to the people that are in danger when

         14  there is a parade somewhere in the City, our Police

         15  Department is emptied out. They go into the City and

         16  we are left with bare minimum. This is a danger to

         17  us. And that is why I feel now the more police,

         18  whether they are on duty or off duty, they are

         19  visible. And, yes, I do want to build my schools to

         20  be as good as Nassau and Suffolk County. We have

         21  teachers that are running out to Nassau and Suffolk

         22  County and maybe we have to look at that also. But

         23  it is important to make New York the middle class

         24  City that it once was. And I feel that this is a

         25  part of doing it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Gentlemen, if

          3  you noticed before, I was the only one who did not

          4  vote on that bill.

          5                 The Administration made up my mind on

          6  two issues, and I see Joe Toal sitting there. I

          7  think it is a total insult for a police officer who

          8  has put 15 years on this job and because he lives in

          9  Nassau he actually is penalized by a point system

         10  that the Administration wants to uphold. That is a

         11  ridiculous thing. I don't care if you are PBA,

         12  officers, lieutenants, captains, chiefs, it is a

         13  disgrace.

         14                 Number two, I have seen this problem

         15  with this residence bill. I came from the Department

         16  of Sanitation, okay, I come from a family of

         17  service, four generations of Police Department, four

         18  generations in Sanitation, I changed my mind because

         19  I saw the attitude in the Administration, okay? I am

         20  sure you see it also on the street. These nuisance

         21  check points are a nuisance to me also, believe me.

         22                 I did not vote in favor of this bill

         23  to penalize, believe me, any cop that is out there,

         24  or any future cops. I like when I have a cop named

         25  Mark Canon, who is in the 106, who lives in Nassau
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          2  County, plays ball for me in the little league,

          3  okay? Or I have other police officers that come in,

          4  Frankie Raner, whose father I know for 25 years in

          5  Ozone Park, he is in Ridgewood now, but he works at

          6  the 106 Precinct.

          7                 It is very comforting to know that

          8  you have a relationship with these police officers.

          9  I would like to see true community policing. I think

         10  that every cop on the beat wants that, because that

         11  cuts down on the baloney, the bull shit that goes on

         12  out there every day, when a cop knows, when that

         13  grocery store guy, when he goes in there and tells

         14  them to move the car, he moves the car. It is

         15  respect for the uniform, respect for the badge and

         16  respect for the person.

         17                 The other day on Liberty Avenue a

         18  very tiny female police officer giving tickets and a

         19  couple of young wiseguys from my neighborhood

         20  thought they were going to harass her. I got out of

         21  the car and I came to her defense, okay? I didn't do

         22  it because she was a woman, I did it because she was

         23  a police officer representing this City and that is

         24  the bottom line.

         25                 The biggest part that affects me with
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          2  this residence bill is that Nassau and Suffolk has

          3  their own little things going on.

          4                 I have a captain, Frank Cebella, who

          5  is a captain in Mineola, Narcotics. He had a choice

          6  of becoming a City cop or a Nassau cop. He chose

          7  Nassau. I have another cousin who became a cop in

          8  Suffolk County. They gave him 30 days to move out of

          9  Queens, move to Suffolk County. And you want to know

         10  something? I think both of these guys would have

         11  been great officers for the New York City Police

         12  Department, and I feel sad that we had to lose them

         13  because they would have been an asset to us.

         14                 As far as me as an individual

         15  supporting PBA or any of the other organizations, I

         16  am with you 100 percent.

         17                 I think this bill is going to become

         18  a reality. Let me explain something else about this

         19  vote. This vote may have been taken today but this

         20  still has to go before the City Council. You still

         21  have quite a few days to lobby your Council people

         22  and let them know the way you feel. There have been

         23  votes that have come forth on the Committee that

         24  have never passed the Council; am I correct? So,

         25  this is not a dead issue. And obviously, as you can
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          2  see, either with or without my vote it is going to

          3  pass anyhow, but it just inflamed me the way the

          4  Administration had the arrogance of what they said,

          5  we are being futile and just taking our time and

          6  everything else.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: DOA.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: DOA, dead on

          9  arrival, that is like a lousy way to come across.

         10                 MR. ROBERTSON: Just to address that.

         11  We don't speak to the Administration.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I know.

         13                 MR. ROBERTSON: We are not the

         14  Administration.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I know that.

         16  I am very good friends with Ronnie Devito, I am

         17  constantly with Ronnie and Phil Caruso for many

         18  years, and Joe Toal knows where I am coming from.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. ROBERTSON: Just so you know, all

         21  of the unions are on board together with the points

         22  for promotional exam.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I know, it's

         24  ridiculous. It doesn't make sense.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Gentlemen, hold

          3  back one second. There is a very interesting point

          4  that was raised by the Council.

          5                 Carl, would you make your --

          6                 MR. SMITH: Yes. You had mentioned

          7  before in your testimony that you were having some

          8  problems with the Police Department in terms of

          9  quotas, in terms of giving specific targets, to

         10  giving out tickets and summonses, et cetera.

         11                 What is the leadership of your union

         12  doing to address that? I mean it is not enough to

         13  simply hear that there is a problem, the Police

         14  Department is not treating us with respect; what are

         15  you doing about it? I mean, those are the things

         16  that we need to know.

         17                 MR. ROBERTS: Okay, I will give you an

         18  effort that we were going to try to get affidavits

         19  from police officers to come forward and say that

         20  they were told by certain supervisors to give out

         21  numbers of summonses. They were so reluctant to come

         22  forward. I mean, I believe we could get those

         23  people, I believe we could if there was a concerted

         24  effort. What I would like to do, I would like to ask

         25  this Council to open up hearings into police quotas,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            136

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  to bring some people down here and let's speak to

          3  them.

          4                 MR. SMITH: We can do that, however,

          5  you are the leadership of the union, right? If you

          6  have got a problem with the Department you have to

          7  address it head on. I mean, we can do what we can do

          8  on our end, but you have to address it, you are the

          9  leadership of the union. The members are looking to

         10  you for leadership to address those concerns with

         11  the Department.

         12                 MR. ROBERTSON: One of the options

         13  that we would have to address that would be to have

         14  our officers engage in an illegal slow-down or work

         15  stoppage, which we are not going to do. It is

         16  irresponsible. The Taylor Law is out there, we are

         17  not going to do that with our members.

         18                 Another thing that is often brought

         19  up, and it is often brought up to me by police

         20  officers, that when we are going to make a

         21  statement, why don't we go the other way and go out

         22  there and do full 100 percent enforcement whereby

         23  bombing the public with summonses and more and more

         24  arrests, that is not the way we want to go. We want

         25  to work with the communities that we serve. Nobody
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          2  wants better community relations than us. But it is

          3  very hard for us to go out there and accomplish this

          4  when they keep raising the bar on summonses and

          5  arrests. And as I have stated before to this

          6  Council, you know, community policing is good.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am going to hold

          8  you right there.

          9                 MR. ROBERTSON: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Mr. Robertson,

         11  because you represent SBA, we have the Lieutenants

         12  Benevolent Association --

         13                 MR. ROBERTSON: No, I represent PBA. I

         14  don't represent the SBA.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Wait. We have them

         16  here is what I said, as well as the Sergeants

         17  Benevolent Association.

         18                 I happen to agree wholeheartedly, so

         19  many of the Council Members happen to agree that

         20  community policing has got to be reinstated. So many

         21  times that rapport that is so critical in

         22  communities is broken when police officers moved

         23  around, they shifted, they are gone, you have to be

         24  able to stabilize communities with community

         25  policing and we are looking at that and certainly
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          2  hoping all three of the police entities will join us

          3  in bringing that to the Mayor's attention as well.

          4                 MR. ROBERTSON: If I may, chair, I

          5  wanted to finish my statement.

          6                 Community policing is good --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, if you can sum

          8  up.

          9                 MR. ROBERTSON: Community policing is

         10  good, the problem is it doesn't get the guns off the

         11  streets. There has to be a blend and a mix. There

         12  has to be a blend of good, strong community

         13  policing, a lot of training and yet you still have

         14  to have -- and, again, I will say the best law is

         15  the will of the people. It is what do the people

         16  want.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We have to have a

         18  blend and a mix both, and I am going to tell you

         19  something else. The Street Crime Units, I think each

         20  precinct should have a Street Crime Unit. A Street

         21  Crime Unit that knows the people and knows the area,

         22  knows the hot spots, knows where they are dumping,

         23  because I am going to tell you something else. I

         24  happen to have, and I thank, Barbara, I am going to

         25  thank you for it, a home that I on occasion try very
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          2  hard to go to in Nyack, in Nyack up in Rockland

          3  County. I have never -- and when there is a detour,

          4  God forbid, I get off the Thruway. I have never seen

          5  an abandoned car, I have never seen garbage, I have

          6  never seen a dumpster that is overflowing upstate. I

          7  haven't seen it when I go visit somebody else. I

          8  have never seen it.

          9                 And I don't understand how, when you

         10  police officers go through the areas, and that is

         11  something you should take up with the PBA, your

         12  delegation, that sore spots, you want the community

         13  to respect police officers -- is someone calling me?

         14  Oh, I am sorry. I am hearing things. It's the

         15  medication. That sometimes police officers, when

         16  they go through the areas, they see things that are

         17  unsightly, would they accept it in their community?

         18  That is the difference. That is why when you live in

         19  the City, you say you know there is an abandoned

         20  car, that I am not going to let it be stripped

         21  apart, burnt, broken glass, it becomes an eyesore.

         22  So, if we don't accept that anywhere else, why are

         23  we accepting that in the City? Do you understand,

         24  Mr. Robertson?

         25                 MR. ROBERTSON: I don't think
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          2  individual police officers accept that. I mean --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I don't think

          4  anybody wants to live in a slum. We have to start

          5  looking as Boston did. Was it Boston who said we

          6  have to start addressing crime as crime, as a

          7  community problem, not as a syndrome of poverty.

          8  There is a big difference here.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MR. ROBERTSON: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you,

         12  gentlemen.

         13                 Joe Toal of the SBA. Mr. Toal, do you

         14  have with you? Are you solo? We take solos. Thank

         15  you.

         16                 Can we have, right after we are going

         17  to have Rochel Levine, from Borough President

         18  Ferrer's Office. Is Ms. Levine here? How about

         19  Jasmine Hakim, from Assemblyman Diaz' Office, and

         20  Andrea Payne, from Congressman Meeks? Okay.

         21                 The statements, I understand some had

         22  to leave, the statements have been left on file, and

         23  will be admitted into the record. Thank you.

         24                 After Mr. Toal, we have the

         25  Lieutenants, Tony Garvey, and then Detective
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          2  Endowment. Then Vic Capullo and John Healy. Oh, you

          3  are up there.

          4                 State your name for the record.

          5                 MR. TOAL: Good afternoon, Madame

          6  Chairperson, members of the Council. Thank you for

          7  your time. I guess it would be faster if we all did

          8  it together.

          9                 I am Joe Toal from the Sergeants

         10  Benevolent Association.

         11                 MR. CIPULLO: Detective Vic Cipullo,

         12  from the Detective Endowment Association.

         13                 MR. GARVEY: I am Tony Garvey from the

         14  Lieutenants Benevolent Association.

         15                 MR. TOAL: All right, I don't want to

         16  read my prepared statement, I handed it in, the

         17  required copies, but on behalf of the Sergeants

         18  Benevolent Association, we voice our opposition to

         19  the residency bill, in its present form, because it

         20  is discriminatory.

         21                 I personally object to the way the

         22  police unions were treated here today. The fact that

         23  we are here testifying now when the vote has already

         24  been taken, I have never seen this in over 20 years

         25  of coming before the City Council and testifying
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          2  here, I have never seen a vote taken before all of

          3  the testimony was in. I have nothing further to say

          4  on the subject, except that I think it is a sad day

          5  for democracy, and I hope those young kids up in the

          6  gallery didn't get the wrong idea. Maybe they didn't

          7  understand what was going on.

          8                 I would just like to thank the

          9  remaining part of the Council for being here and

         10  staying and listening to the testimony. And the

         11  purpose for me here today is just to provide some

         12  facts in the hope of providing feedback and

         13  information so that you can make your decision,

         14  which is already done.

         15                 I still want to just highlight a

         16  couple of areas. My colleague John Driscoll from the

         17  Captains is not able to be here today, but he did

         18  provide a written statement, which we gave out.

         19                 But let me just highlight a couple of

         20  facts, and I think these are very important, just

         21  for one not to lose sight of.

         22                 The Personnel Bureau of the New York

         23  City Police Department has conducted studies into

         24  performance and related factors.

         25                 In June of 1996, 19,630 candidates
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          2  filed for the police officer exam, but only 14,990

          3  took the exam and less passed it.

          4                 In May of 1998, 21,492 filed for the

          5  test, and only 15,965 showed up to take the exam. In

          6  January '99, 14,323, and 9,000 took the exam. These

          7  are very important numbers, and I will tell you why.

          8  Because traditionally only one candidate in eight is

          9  finally appointed to the Department due to medical,

         10  physical and background checks.

         11                 Normally 45 percent of the candidates

         12  who take the test are non-residents, and it is

         13  apparent that the Department even now is having

         14  great difficulty meeting its hiring needs.

         15                 To eliminate 45 percent of the

         16  eligible candidates, would have a devastating effect

         17  on meeting recruitment needs. I mean, consider also

         18  that in the next five years, due to attrition, the

         19  Department will be losing more than 11,000

         20  individuals from the Department, and this I believe

         21  is a conservative figure.

         22                 The Department members at higher

         23  levels will be leaving shortly. And recently, in

         24  fact it was mentioned earlier, that the Las Vegas

         25  Police Department is recruiting. Eight-hundred New
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          2  York City police officers are taking that exam, many

          3  of them residents of this great City.

          4                 The Council should be concerned and

          5  more concerned with recruiting qualified candidates

          6  than restricting eligible candidates. Morale has

          7  never been lower in the Police Department and

          8  members are leaving for other opportunities.

          9                 But let me just say a couple added

         10  things. There is a lot of rhetoric and we have to

         11  talk about recruitment. It is a critical issue to

         12  the New York City Police Department. Recruitment

         13  under Mayor Koch, under Mayor Dinkins, under black

         14  Police Commissioners Ward and Lee Brown, have never

         15  been successful in recruiting black males.

         16                 Archie, it just hasn't happened. So,

         17  we have to start looking at a different process.

         18  Let's look to expand the horizon. Go to the minority

         19  communities. If we want more blacks, if we are not

         20  able to recruit them from within the City, let's

         21  expand that. Let's take the residents who reside in

         22  Westchester, minorities who reside in Westchester

         23  and Nassau County, let's look to these minority

         24  communities that exist there. Bring these

         25  individuals in, recruit actively to bring these
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          2  members into our Department, to make it more

          3  sensitive in terms of make up.

          4                 These things have to be done, Archie,

          5  and you know, I applaud your efforts. I know you

          6  have been at this a long time, Mr. Councilman, and

          7  Councilwoman Cruz, I understand what happened here

          8  today. I also, as Al Stabile had said earlier today,

          9  when it was mentioned that you are wasting your time

         10  going forward with this vote, how insulted you were.

         11  I also was insulted by the method and manner which

         12  the vote was conducted today. So, I do want to add

         13  my concern about that one particular issue.

         14                 But what we should be doing is about

         15  minority recruitment, to expand that horizon.

         16                 Let's move actually beyond the City

         17  limits and let's recruit minorities that exist in

         18  the many minority communities outside the City.

         19                 Thank you. And there is a copy of the

         20  Captain's statement, I took a couple of facts from

         21  the Captain's statement.

         22                 MR. CIPULLO: Okay, Vic Cipullo.

         23                 I would like to say good afternoon to

         24  the Council. This is also my first City Council

         25  meeting. I want to say that I was surprised at the
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          2  vote prior to hearing the facts. I came here and I

          3  really was expecting something else. I was expecting

          4  two sides of the story and then everybody in the

          5  Council would make their vote.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: How many

          7  times are we going to have to hear this? I mean --

          8                 MR. CIPULLO: Do you mind if I say

          9  what is on my mind? I listened to everybody else say

         10  what is on their mind, please. That's all I am

         11  asking.

         12                 And like I said, I came here

         13  expecting something else, and I understand

         14  Chairwoman Cruz saying 20 to 25 years this topic has

         15  been on the table and I looked at some of the

         16  Council members and some of them look like 20, 25

         17  years ago they were in high school, so I don't

         18  believe they were on the Council going through the

         19  residency bill.

         20                 So, I felt maybe we should have

         21  listened to them, and especially with those

         22  explorers, like you said, they are the future, and

         23  if the future is going to see the way we do business

         24  here, I think that is unfair. Am I talking too slow

         25  or too fast? I don't know the hand movements, I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            147

          1  COMMITTEE ON CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  wasn't sure. Maybe you think I am deaf. I am sorry.

          3                 But anyway, in regards to the

          4  residency law, we agree with 652, we think you

          5  should give tax credits and college tuition and help

          6  the people that are living in the City. I am a City

          7  resident for a long time, but to confine your

          8  recruitment pool we think is wrong, to tell a person

          9  that they have to live a certain place, that they

         10  can't make a choice, like they said earlier, if they

         11  want to marry someone and move out of the City to

         12  Nassau County, I think that is unfair. I think that

         13  if you really believe, like Councilwoman Koslowitz

         14  said, that off duty cops living in the City are

         15  going to help protect you, okay? I have made a

         16  number of off-duty collars in the Bronx, and I am

         17  all for helping the next person, but I have to be

         18  honest, with all of the bashing and the police

         19  bashing that the media has done, and some of the

         20  statements I have heard today, I believe that cops

         21  living in the City are going to think twice before

         22  they get up and say let me get involved. I am going

         23  to be second guessed weeks and months after this

         24  incident, and I may lose my job and the pension for

         25  my family. I am going to be honest, as a New Yorker
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          2  and a cop, I am going to go call 911, I probably

          3  won't have to get involved again because I have 30

          4  years on this Police Department and I am going to be

          5  darned if I am going to jeopardize my pension the

          6  rest of my life to help somebody that tomorrow to be

          7  honest may get arrested down in front of One Police

          8  Plaza that doesn't like cops.

          9                 So, all I want to say is, on behalf

         10  of the DEA, and I know I made my own personal

         11  sentiments known, but I just think that the

         12  residence law should be looked at a little further,

         13  and before the decision was made.

         14                 Thank you for listening.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Before I turn it

         16  over to some comments, I have to say, Officer

         17  Cipullo, that I thought the analogy was terrible. My

         18  husband was for 27 years, continues to this very day

         19  to be a cop. He doesn't stop to think about I am

         20  going to call 911 and let somebody else handle it,

         21  and I think if your mentality, your analogy is

         22  something that is going to be followed in the PD,

         23  maybe that is all the more reason why we need to say

         24  we need you to be a resident because then you are

         25  going to care more about the community that you live
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          2  in.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 Council Member Spigner and then

          5  Council Member Stabile.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Sir, there

          7  are things that we can agree on, I think we have had

          8  a healthy discussion here today and we talk more as

          9  to how to make our police force better and our City

         10  better. You know, I am glad that there is some City

         11  representation among those of you who were here

         12  today, and you have got a lot of faith.

         13                 I can understand, too, that morale in

         14  the Police Department is down. I can understand

         15  that. Maybe there is a lot of reasons for it. The

         16  morale in the City as it relates to the police and

         17  community relations is not healthy. We need to talk

         18  more as New Yorkers, as police and citizens, we need

         19  to have more dialogue and I am making myself

         20  available. I am not going to agree with you on

         21  everything and maybe you aren't going to agree with

         22  me on everything, we certainly can agree on that we

         23  do need to talk and New York City has problems and

         24  by working together we can do a lot more than being

         25  at each other's throats.
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          2                 MR. TOAL: Mr. Spigner, can I just

          3  respond? I think what we are looking for, we are

          4  looking for --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Excuse me. Mr.

          6  Spigner is not running this meeting, I am.

          7                 MR. TOAL: Madame Chair, you are

          8  absolutely correct, and I defer to you. Absolutely

          9  correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: I am going to

         11  acknowledge Council Member Stabile.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: What I would

         13  like to say is, I also was very unhappy with the way

         14  the vote went. I think I said it even before I did

         15  cast my yes vote. But one of the problems that I

         16  have dealt with, is a really serious problem and it

         17  deals with the sergeants. In a lot of my precincts

         18  we don't have enough sergeants. We have sergeants

         19  that are taking care of numerous amount of men, it

         20  is impossible for them to do the job. It is

         21  impossible.

         22                 We have met with some police at some

         23  point and said to them, look, you know, we know for

         24  a fact this precinct, this precinct, you got one

         25  sergeant covering so many different sectors, you got
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          2  this and this and this and with the detective units

          3  and everything else. I have several police officers

          4  who are involved with my organization, one happens

          5  to be a sergeant named Steve Cantino, Joe, you are

          6  familiar with Steve, and I know the morale is bad,

          7  because I hear him talk, I hear how he feels. He

          8  feels like no matter what I do I am going to be a

          9  problem out there. If I see something and I go to

         10  help, and let me just relay this one quick message:

         11  several years ago we had an incident at the ball

         12  field, and if it wasn't for Steve Cantino, an off

         13  duty cop, we would have had a riot. Because another

         14  group of kids from another neighborhood came in,

         15  girls were playing softball and they decided they

         16  were going to be a little rowdy and bring some beer

         17  and wine and start being rowdy, and if it wasn't

         18  that we had a police officer right there on the

         19  spot, that is how fast it took place. He got it

         20  under control.

         21                 There is a lot of issues, and I still

         22  believe this issue is not dead, and I still believe

         23  you should do a lot of lobbying to the general

         24  Council, not just this Committee.  There is ways

         25  that some of us can change votes on the floor when
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          2  it comes to voting.

          3                 But let me just say one thing. There

          4  is really a terrible morale problem in your

          5  Department, and it is serious, it is. And you can

          6  feel it in the men from the moment you talk to them.

          7  They are disgusted. They want to get their 20 years

          8  in and they want to get the hell out.

          9                 They are disgusted because they don't

         10  see a future and they see it going the opposite way.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Mr. Healy, is that

         13  you?

         14                 MR. GARVEY: No, I am Tony Garvey.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Mr. Garvey, I am

         16  sorry. You can now address the Council.

         17                 MR. GARVEY: I think my comment before

         18  was that we are looking for full-time policing at

         19  part-time wages, but I would be negligent here today

         20  if I didn't just indicate a couple of things that I

         21  have to indicate, and I have to do it for the wives,

         22  for the children, the sons and daughters, the sons

         23  and fathers, of those police officers who were

         24  killed in the line of duty who resided outside the

         25  City.
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          2                 Sergeant Keith Levine, off duty,

          3  thwarted a robbery and he was shot and killed.

          4                 William Gunn. William Kennedy. Shawn

          5  McDonald. Nick Dimutis.  Raymond Canon. Charles

          6  Otto. Kevin Gillespe. Vinnie Godice. This is just

          7  since 1991.

          8                 You can't say to those mothers and

          9  those wives and the children of these individuals

         10  that your father or mother did not give 110 percent

         11  to the City of New York, and that is a fact. That is

         12  irrefutable. They did not run away from their

         13  assignment, the jobs they had. They faced the danger

         14  and they took on that responsibility for the safety

         15  of everybody in New York City. So, let us not forget

         16  that fact as well.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Vic, did you want

         19  to say something?

         20                 MR. CIPULLO: Just quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We are on a first

         22  name basis now.

         23                 MR. CIPULLO: Yes. I just wanted to

         24  say that I know your Husband Landy, I know Vic Cruz,

         25  Vic Cruz broke me in as a young detective.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: My brother-in-law.

          3                 MR. CIPULLO: I was a young detective.

          4  He took me under his wing and showed me the ropes as

          5  an investigator. And they are both great cops and

          6  they know the kind of cop I am, and they know the

          7  things that I have done on this job. And I really

          8  feel and I am talking from the heart about being

          9  involved off duty, I don't believe being a resident,

         10  because I am a resident, if I wasn't a resident I

         11  would get involved, but I wanted to bring out is

         12  that people I speak to, other cops really are

         13  worried about getting involved off duty and being

         14  second guessed, and all I am saying is residency may

         15  not be an answer of getting more cops on the street,

         16  while they are off duty, just not paying for more

         17  cops. That is all I wanted to bring out.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: In closing, I am

         20  going to say that the longest journey begins with

         21  the first step. I think we have all taken that first

         22  step. We want to work with you. In reference to Mr.

         23  Garvey's statement about the officers that have

         24  fallen, we are not saying that the officers who have

         25  been a part of the Police Department should be now
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          2  forgotten and sent on their ways. We are

          3  safeguarding that. We are saying that in the future,

          4  and again it is open for dialogue, we are starting,

          5  gentlemen, we are starting something that is very

          6  real and it is of urgency, I have to say. And I

          7  think you guys would walk away with a terrible

          8  feeling if because a bad officer, not only hurts the

          9  community, it hurts all of you. You don't want a bad

         10  officer any more than we don't. We have to begin by

         11  acknowledging not every police officer is a

         12  wonderful person, just like doctors and just like

         13  teachers and down the line and Council people, you

         14  are right. Not everyone is wonderful, but we have to

         15  acknowledge how do we root it out? How do we make it

         16  better? How do we make residency so that we can all

         17  live with it? Okay, this is step one. I want to

         18  thank you from the bottom of my heart, from a

         19  retired officer's wife, and certainly from a mother

         20  of a son who is in law enforcement as well. So,

         21  thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: The

         23  Lieutenant mentioned the name Nicholas Dimutis. I

         24  was there when Nick got killed. I was on the scene

         25  when he got killed. I went to his house. I went to
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          2  the wake, the funeral, and we named a park after

          3  him, which is like a grain of sand compared to

          4  losing a life. But Nicholas Dimutis was off duty,

          5  and doing a job protecting the City of New York.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 MR. CIPULLO: Madame Chairperson, may

          9  I just add one thing? Your husband Alando is one of

         10  my members, retired sergeant.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Yes, he is.

         12                 MR. CIPULLO: I live in Brooklyn, I

         13  have lived in Brooklyn all of my life.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Good. Thank you.

         15                 MR. CIPULLO: I have made off-duty

         16  arrests, and I would advise any young police

         17  officer, police officer out there today, that sees

         18  something to call 911, because the New York City

         19  Police Department has a procedure in place where the

         20  duty captain has to be called and they come and

         21  investigate why you took police action, all right?

         22  Call 911 is what police officers should do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Do you have a

         24  response, Council Member?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No. Just a
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          2  healthy exchange. I have learned from you, as I hope

          3  you have learned from me, and I hope that we learn

          4  that we can work together in solving these problems,

          5  in the interest of our City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you.

          7                 MR. CIPULLO: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: We have Janine

          9  Hakim. How is the last name pronounced? Oh, it is

         10  Hakim? I saw something else. Oh, okay, Ms. Janine

         11  Hakim, Special Assistant to Assemblyman Ruben Diaz,

         12  from my Council district.

         13                 Thank you. First let me thank you so

         14  much for this late hour and for you hanging in, and

         15  I hope everything that you have heard has been to

         16  the benefit certainly of the community, which I know

         17  it will be with Assemblyman Diaz.

         18                 MS. HAKIM: Well, thank you very much,

         19  Honorable Chair, and the other members of the

         20  Committee.

         21                 The Assemblyman unfortunately was not

         22  able to be here today, and he asked me to read what

         23  would otherwise would have been his pleasure to

         24  share with you.

         25                 So, quoting directly: Let me begin as
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          2  a member of the New York State Assembly by thanking

          3  you, the members of the New York City's Legislature,

          4  the City Council, for convening this important

          5  hearing and for having invited to the table all of

          6  the concerned parties who are directly affected by

          7  the critical community police relations issues that

          8  are being discussed today.

          9                 Let me also, as a fellow citizen

         10  legislator, salute you and your Council colleagues

         11  who participated in an act of civil disobedience and

         12  were arrested in the defense of justice and human

         13  and civil rights.

         14                 Together we upheld our common duty to

         15  respond to the higher law principles of Henry David

         16  Thoreau. These same principles have inspired the

         17  legislators who stood up to the American

         18  Anti-Slavery Movement, the South African Liberation

         19  Movement, the Labor Movement and the American Civil

         20  Rights Movement.

         21                 Today, as a member of the Assembly

         22  standing committees on Children and Families,

         23  Cities, Corrections, Education, Governmental

         24  Operations and Housing, I have come to speak to you

         25  in order to address the needs of all of my fellow
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          2  New Yorkers and constituents and to ensure that

          3  their voices are heard and responded to,

          4  particularly the young men of color who are being

          5  stopped every day by the police.

          6                 As a Puerto Rican American, who is

          7  the youngest elected official in the State

          8  Legislature, I, too, have been stopped and

          9  questioned by the police. I promised my constituents

         10  and the Diallo family that I will work with them to

         11  change the underlying causes of the abuse of their

         12  human and civil rights.

         13                 In that context I am here to strongly

         14  support the passage of your two key residency

         15  requirement resolutions, 258 and 652. These

         16  resolutions call upon the State Legislature to amend

         17  the existing public officers law of the State of New

         18  York, by bringing back the residency requirement for

         19  police officers that existed just a few decades ago,

         20  while creating income incentives for those officers.

         21                 These resolutions will respond to the

         22  urgent need to once again bind the citizens of New

         23  York City and the police who patrol their streets

         24  into real trusting, enlightened crime fighting

         25  partnerships between neighbors who share common
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          2  ground.

          3                 As you know, at 2:00 a.m. on

          4  Thursday, February 4th, another tragic and untimely

          5  death of a young man occurred on the streets of the

          6  Bronx at the hands of New York City police officers.

          7                 The shocking and untimely death of

          8  Amadou Diallo was that of a young man with no prior

          9  arrest record, a young unarmed man who was swept up

         10  in an NYPD Street Crime Task Force rape and burglary

         11  investigation. Under those circumstances there is no

         12  rationale for firing 41 rounds of which 20 hit Mr.

         13  Diallo in the lobby of his own building. That is why

         14  I immediately asked U.S. Attorney Mary Jo White to

         15  wield the power of her office and launch an

         16  impartial detailed federal inquiry into every facet

         17  of the death of Mr. Diallo, including the violations

         18  of his human and civil rights.

         19                 An ethnically, racially and

         20  religiously diverse cross section of people,

         21  particularly young people, from the Bronx, New York

         22  City, indeed from around our nation and the world,

         23  have joined in remembering Mr. Diallo and have

         24  called upon us as elected officials to act.

         25                 I know you agree with me that it is
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          2  our sworn duty as elected government

          3  representatives:

          4                 - to do everything in our power to

          5  put a stop to these kinds of repeated incidents that

          6  are lobbying our communities and their youth,

          7  particularly our young men.

          8                 - to fulfill the promise of democracy

          9  and protect that pillar of good government by

         10  crafting legislation and ensuring that the

         11  administration of justice protects the human and

         12  civil rights of each and every citizen, resident and

         13  guests to our American shores.

         14                 - to help bring before the bar of

         15  justice anyone who would deprive any citizen,

         16  resident or guest of their human civil rights.

         17                 - to ensure that the various city,

         18  state and national law enforcement agencies adhere

         19  to and protect the human and civil rights of every

         20  individual.

         21                 - to repair the tears in the crucial

         22  fabric of mutual trust and cooperation that must

         23  exist between civilians and law enforcement if we

         24  are going to effectively combat crime.

         25                 - to create legislation that will
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          2  foster close working partnerships between the police

          3  and the overwhelming majority of African-American

          4  and Latino New Yorkers, young and old alike who are

          5  law abiding individuals and want nothing more than

          6  to work in concert with law enforcement to protect

          7  their streets, schoolyards and business community

          8  from the scourge of crime.

          9                 New York State Assembly Bill A.2659,

         10  the Uniformed Services Residency Requirement Bill,

         11  crafted by democratic Assemblyman Robert Vann, of

         12  which I am a co-sponsor, is just such a piece of

         13  legislation.

         14                 I believe, and am here to strongly

         15  support New York City Council resolution 258 and

         16  652, because they, too, are that kind of

         17  legislation.

         18                 New Yorkers of every background have

         19  reached out to me because I am the New York State

         20  Assembly representative for the South, East Bronx

         21  75th Assembly District, which includes the community

         22  of Soundview in the Bronx, the community Amadou

         23  Diallo chose to call his home, the community in

         24  which he died. This is what they want:

         25                 Enforcement of our common American
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          2  legacy - protection of human and civil rights.

          3                 Protection of our common American

          4  legacy - the 4th Amendment to the Constitution, from

          5  the escalating pattern of stop and search frisks,

          6  directed most often at young African-American and

          7  Latino youth. An escalating pattern is all too often

          8  accompanied by verbal and physical abuse, a pattern

          9  that abuses these young men's human and civil

         10  rights.

         11                 Justice that will prevail based on

         12  principles embedded in the American Justice System.

         13                 Immediate implementation of the

         14  recommendation of the Knapp, Mollen and Louima

         15  Commissions.

         16                 The revival and implementation of the

         17  proven tools of community policing.

         18                 The implementation of systemic

         19  changes and genuine reform of the Police Department

         20  that will bring the community and law enforcement

         21  back together with mutual respect and understanding

         22  on the common ground of a crime reduction and public

         23  safety partnership.

         24                 We, the elected officials, must stand

         25  up, speak out and legislate around these issues in
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          2  lasting and meaningful ways.

          3                 I believe in and strongly support New

          4  York City Council resolutions 258 and 652, because

          5  they represent genuine systemic legislative change

          6  and address these issues in a meaningful and

          7  effective manner to the benefit of both the citizens

          8  and the police.

          9                 The majority of the residents of this

         10  City readily agree that the vast majority of police

         11  officers do a great job and believe those officers

         12  are responsible for the dramatic drop in crime. They

         13  are equally clear that they should not in this

         14  democratic society have to exchange their human and

         15  civil rights at the hands of abusive police officers

         16  in order to achieve that drop in crime. That is why

         17  as a state legislator, I have worked with my

         18  assembly colleagues to co-sponsor legislation

         19  designed to bring about systemic changes and genuine

         20  long-lasting legislative reform, including, the

         21  elimination of the 48 hour rule and the

         22  establishment of the statewide independent

         23  prosecutor to investigate, and if necessary,

         24  prosecute instances of alleged police misconduct and

         25  brutality.
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          2                 It is why I have worked with

          3  democratic State Senator Ada Smith and created

          4  Assembly Bill 86105, the Amadou Diallo civil rights

          5  bill, which clearly sets up barriers automatically

          6  disqualifying anyone convicted of any violation of

          7  human and civil rights laws, from having the

          8  privilege of becoming a police officer.

          9                 It also meets swift and direct

         10  disciplinary actions against police officers who are

         11  charged with any violation of human and civil rights

         12  laws, by directing them to be disciplined and

         13  suspended without pay, pending an investigation, and

         14  should they be found guilty of the charges they are

         15  dismissed immediately.

         16                 We live in a democracy built on the

         17  pledge of one City, state and nation, indivisible,

         18  with one standard of just for all, and the promise

         19  of human and civil rights for all.

         20                 As a legislator and an American

         21  citizen who cherishes our constitutions, I will

         22  never allow myself to forget the words engraved on

         23  the State Court House in Foley Square, "The true

         24  administration of justice is the firmest pillar of

         25  good government." That is why I strongly support
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          2  passage of Resolutions 258 and 652. They, like New

          3  York State Assembly Bill A.2659, once again require

          4  New York City police officers to live in the city

          5  they serve, a relationship based on a common ground

          6  and common concerns and interests will be created

          7  between our city's residents and the police officers

          8  who patrol its streets. By living in and bringing up

          9  their children in New York City, police officers'

         10  job performances will improve, as they become more

         11  in tune with, knowledgeable about, comfortable with,

         12  and concerned about their neighbors, families,

         13  cultures and concerns.

         14                 By living and bringing up their

         15  children side by side with police officers, New

         16  Yorkers will become more in tune with, knowledgeable

         17  about and comfortable with and interested in working

         18  with their police neighbors as individuals with

         19  families and concerns.

         20                 New York City's communities will

         21  benefit from an increasing number of collaborations

         22  between off duty police officers and their New York

         23  City neighbors who will come together to nourish the

         24  City and cultural life and mentor the youth of their

         25  common home town.
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          2                 As for the next generation of New

          3  York's finest, the residency requirements will

          4  foster a higher percentage of police recruits who

          5  drawn from the diverse ranks of residents of this

          6  City, will be representative of its current racial

          7  and ethnic demographics.

          8                 In point of fact, I also speak in

          9  support of these resolutions because they will

         10  provide a direct economic benefit to the

         11  hard-working men and women in blue who by and large

         12  perform their jobs heroically, with integrity and

         13  respect for their fellow citizens.

         14                 While these resolutions will require

         15  living in New York City, they will offer those

         16  officers income and tax credits along with public

         17  college grants.

         18                 I, like you, have a residency

         19  requirement, and must live in the district I was

         20  elected to represent. This enhances our day-to-day

         21  ability to do our jobs and serve our constituents,

         22  as we shop, work and raise our families in the

         23  community we serve and gives us a unique and

         24  invaluable understanding of its residents' needs and

         25  concerns.
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          2                 I believe that this same level of

          3  insight and rapport will be an important tool in the

          4  future of law enforcement and in bringing about

          5  systemic reform in the New York City Police

          6  Department.

          7                 Thank you for the wisdom, vigilance

          8  and swiftness of your action, and to each and every

          9  one of you here today, and for stepping up to the

         10  plate by proposing Resolutions 258 and 652.

         11                 I look forward to continuing to work

         12  with you as a member of the New York State Assembly,

         13  as the members of our two legislators pass bills

         14  that will forge bonds between the citizens of this

         15  City and the honest hard working men and women in

         16  blue who patrol its streets, bonds that will help

         17  finally rid us of the corrupt and brutal officers

         18  who are destroying the credibility and effectiveness

         19  of that agency, bonds that will build on the common

         20  ground of mutual respect, and shared interest of a

         21  common home town, bonds that will become the

         22  backbone of long-lasting and effective crime

         23  prevention and public safety while protecting each

         24  and every individual's human and civil rights.

         25                 In closing, as I have mentioned in
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          2  conjunction with my own legislation, I would urge

          3  people to reflect on these words of President Lyndon

          4  Baines Johnson:

          5                 "We have talked long enough in this

          6  country about equal rights. We have talked for a

          7  hundred years or more. It is time now to write the

          8  next chapter and to write it in the books of law."

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON CRUZ: Thank you so very,

         11  very much. I am just absolutely awed by the closing

         12  statement.

         13                 Thank you. And we do need to write it

         14  in the books of law. So, please thank the

         15  Assemblyman.

         16                 And at this time, before we leave, I

         17  want to again just say to Council Member Spigner,

         18  who is the champion and the pioneer of Reso 258 on

         19  the residency for police officers and Reso 652 which

         20  is the tax credits tuition, et cetera, thank you.

         21  You have started that first step here. Thank you.

         22                 This meeting is now adjourned. Thank

         23  you.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 2:00 p.m.)

         25
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